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REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Offi

ce of Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and

Housing Services to enter into retroactive Agreements with vendors, to provide services to homeless individuals,
in an amount not to exceed $758,160. This amount represents an award effective retroactive to July 1, 2013 upon

Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2015.

Summary of contracted amounts by vendor:

Vendor Total
My Friends Place $101,260
INH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence $554,746
INH Legal Assistance $102,154
Total $758,160

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account in

State Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 upon the

availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets with the authority to adjust

amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms
Governor and Executive Council.

of the contract without further approval from

05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES,| DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object  Class Title

2014 05-95-42-423010-7928  102-500731 Contracts for program services $ 1,790,708

2015 05-95-42-423010-7928  102-500731 Contracts for program services $ 1.800.249
Total $ 3,590,957

Please see attachment for fiscal details

By 8
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EXPLANATION

This package includes 3 of 25 retroactive contracts and represents $758,160 of a total of $3,590,957 anticipated

to be spent statewide for the State of New Hampshire Emerg
Assistance programs for state fiscal years 2014 and 2015. The

ency Shelter Program Grant-In-Aid to Homeless

Govemor and Executive council have previously

approved fifteen (15) of the twenty-five (25) contracts. The seven (7) remaining contracts will be forwarded for
approval of Governor and Council when they are received from the Vendors. These contracts are retroactive
because of delays in obtaining accurate and complete contract submissions from the Vendors.

The Vendors, all nonprofit organizations, shall utilize State of N
Grant-In-Aid and matching funds pursuant to these Agreements
finding permanent housing, employment counseling, substance
community services, and staff salaries and benefits; and/or Oper
costs such as rent, utilities, insurance and supplies; and/or Preve
utilities arrearage with discounted notice, back rent with evictio
notice. Such activities help negate instances where households

The total bed nights provided by shelters in NH were:

SFY 2011 - 252,589
SFY 2012 -294,138
Total - 546,727

In SFY 2012, each evening, state-funded emergency shelters prqg
839 people who were without a home. Families comprised 31%

A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the
Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The
Department of Health and Human Services’ website. Criter
elements and is assembled as required; program design an
identified outcomes; coordination with community organization
Care/Local Service Delivery Area; soundness of approach; co
accurate and timely utilization of Homeless Management Infor
compliance with rules, statutes and life safety codes;
prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying
proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and prog

Jew Hampshire Emergency Shelter Program

for Essential Services, such as assistance in

abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other

ations Activities, including shelter operational
ntion/Intervention Services, such as payment of

n notice, or mortgage arrearage with foreclosure
are threatened by immediate homelessness.

vided a warm place to sleep for approximately
of those served.

annual NH Homeless Provider and Homeless
Request for Proposal was also posted on the
ia for selection included: proposal includes all
d need for project; performance measures and
s and resources; involvement with Continuum of
st proposal, budget and leveraging of resources;
mation System; staff experience and credentials;
increase in bed capacity; and increase in
organization was required to submit a separate
ram models to be evaluated independently. Fifty

(50) separate proposals that could be funded through State Grant-In-Aid, from 35 organizations, were evaluated

and scored.
The Bureau assures contract compliance and provider performan

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed, including the
administrative rules and contractual agreements;

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis
demographic information and income and expense reports inclug

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outr
and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless M|

ice through the following:

collection of data relating to compliance with
from all funded providers, including various
ling match dollars; and

each services will be required to maintain timely
anagement Information System, unless they are

required by law to use an alternate data collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will be
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the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts. As of this date, the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is the only
provider prohibited by NH RSA 173-B and RSA 173-C from providing client specific data into the NH Homeless
Management Information System. This provider will be required to provide all required reports through an

alternate data system, on the same schedule as other providers.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this Request, shelter and homeless prevention
resources for people who are homeless may not be available in|their community, and there will be an increase in
demand statewide place upon local welfare authorities. People who are without housing and resources will resort
to seeking local shelter in places that are not fit for people to live in, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other
communities. This will increase the chances that people who are homeless will be in danger of injury or death,

and will be cut off from basic supports for health, education
since the shelter and/or resource agencies would have to close t

Area served:  Statewide

Source of funds: 100% General Funds.

Approy

d treatment. Numerous jobs would also be lost
eir doors or drastically reduce staff.

Respectfully submitted,

e,

Mgry Ann Cdoney
Associ ommissione

BN

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to_join communities and families in providing opportunities for citizens to
achieve health and independence.




05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & | HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS
(100% General Funds)

United Ways of New Hampshire, 211 NH (Vendor# 202684-B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $44,973
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $54,514
Sub-total $99,487

AIDS Response Seacoast (Vendor# 166647 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $20,557
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $20,557
Sub-total $41,114

Bridge House Shelter (Vendor# 165288 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $77,506
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $77,506
Sub-total $155,012

Child and Family Services (Vendor# 177166 - B002)
State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $143,226
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $143,226

Sub-total $286,452

Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $144,425
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $144,425

Sub-total $288,850

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & Housing Serv
Financial Detail
Page I of 5




First Congregational Church - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $8,038
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $8,038
Sub-total $16,076
The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor#|154987 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $172,763
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $172,763
Sub-total $345,526

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keyst

one Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $53,486
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $53,486
Sub-total $106,972

Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network, Ilc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)

d/b/a Anne-Marie Hou

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $15,674
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $15,674
Sub-total $31,348
Headrest Inc. (Vendor# 175226 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $56,532
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $56,532
Sub-total $113,064

Helping Hands Outreach Center (Vendor# 174226 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $51,384
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $51,384
Sub-total $102,768

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & Housing Serv
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Laconia Area Community Land Trust (Vendor# 156571 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $41,157
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $41,157
Sub-total $82,314

Marguerite's Place, Inc (Vendor# 157465-B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $38,933
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $38,933
Sub-total $77,866

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program (Vendor# 157934 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $63,212
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $63,212
Sub-total $126,424

My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $50,630
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $50,630
Sub-total $101,260

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $73,388
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $73,388
Sub-total $146,776

New Generation, Inc (Vendor# 177295 - B002)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $61,671
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $61,671
Sub-total $123,342

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & Housing Serv
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New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $161,767
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $161,767
Sub-total $323,534

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual

Violence (Vendori# 155510 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $277,373
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $277,373
Sub-total $554,746
New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Vendor# 154648 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $51,077
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $51,077
Sub-total $102,154
he Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $61,840
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $61,840
Sub-total $123,680
The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $30,835
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $30,835
Sub-total $61,670
The Samaritans (Vendor# 204660-B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Cpde Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $64,960
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $64,960
Sub-total $129,920

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & Housing Serv
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St. John Neumann Outreach Program (Vendor# 155674 - B002)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $15,418
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $15,418
Sub-total $30,836
Veteran Homestead Inc (Vendor# 162068 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $9,883
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $9,883
Sub-total $19,766
Total $3,590,957]

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & Housing Serv
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: State Grant-In-Aid Funds Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 | State Agency Address —l
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
[1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 | Contractor Address
My Friend's Place 368 Washington Street
Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 | Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation

Number
(603) 749-3017 05-95-42-423010-7928 June 30, 2015 $101,260.00
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 | State Agency Telephone Number
Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator (603)271-9197

s —

1.11 Cofitractor Signatnfe 1.12 | Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

/ /—2‘ / F.X. Bruton, President

1.13 / Acknowledgement: State of , County of

N

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary,Public or Justice of the Peace
s rd
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace Brenda Gaudet
, My commission expires
F(}/’\\&L 7 (M/u:\}/f 8 Dec 2015
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 | Name and Title of State Agency Sigratory
M Az An aCoon
% 2 Acsoceabe (o L eg
1.16 yih ei.H.@qem of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)
!
g %M——- C eal 2o
By: - on: @ (® : =
y: anne P HCM%/Q#W’?% :
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council
By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO,
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
nd event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
inc¢luding, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the

lations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
it the State or United States access to any of the
Cantractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly

nsed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
S.
Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
pletion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
oration with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
orm the Services to hire, any person who is a State

loyee or official, who is materially involved in the
urement, administration or performance of this

eement. This provision shall survive termination of this
eement.

The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event




8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
d the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or jother emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
te, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
ilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insprance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
praperty subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof sha]l be
attached and are incorporated herein by refereny




certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page 4 of 4

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21, HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in

the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23, SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be|contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and

ct.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be lexecuted in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be|deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials,
Dat:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Program
Exhibit A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

State Grant In Aid Program

1. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:
1.1. Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EX

HIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to comply with

the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, for Services,

operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitatio

n as approved by the Bureau of Homeless and

Housing Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, Department of Health and

Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.
The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future le

1.2.

islative action by the New Hampshire General

Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements for the funds provided under this Agreement so as to achieve

compliance therewith.
The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable

1.3.

to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate
records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document actual funds received or denials of

funding from such public sources of funds.
The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service modality

1.4.

describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services rendered, and staff

required to provide the service, as may be requir

by the State. Monthly reports may be

required at the discretion of the State. Reports shall include, but are not limited to, details of
compliance with the following key program outcomes:

1.4.1. 75% of program participants will exit the pr
1.4.2. The average length of stay in this program

ram to permanent housing.
ill be reduced by 10%.

1.4.3. Target the review of the case plan of individuals potentially staying longer than 60 days to

1.5.

expedite their permanent housing objective

All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or

permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this
contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS| policy, including specific information that is
required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry. Current NH

HMIS policy can be accessed electronically throu
hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data i
delay or withholding of reimbursements until such
confirmed by the State.

1.6.

2. SERVICES:

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during th
services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:
New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In
A:28 and 126-A:29 as well as He-M 314
Contractor shall use the New Hampshire Emergen

2.1
22
O

O

CA/DHHS/100213

Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect noti
homelessness.

Essential Services, such as assistance in findi
counseling, substance abuse counseling, assi
and staff salaries and benefits.

Operations Activities, including shelter operatig
and supplies.

Exhibit A
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the following website: http:/Amwww.nh-

to HMIS in a timely fashion could result in the
reports are received or data entries are

e term of this Agreement, it will provide

-Aid Program RSA 126-A:25, 126-A:27, 126-
cy Shelter State Grant-In-Aid funds for:

with eviction notice, mortgage with

ce, and other activities to prevent

g permanent housing, employment
tance in accessing other community services,

ynal costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,

Contractor Initials ’
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servijces
State Grant In Aid Program

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

State Grant In Aid Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A — State Grant In
Aid Program.
This contract is funded 100% by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY14 not to exceed $50,630.00
SFY15 not to exceed $50,630.00
Federal Funds: Not Applicable

1. PROGRESS REPORTS:
Semi-annual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which identify the status of the
Services performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining services prior to the Completion Date
and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the
month following the end of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2. PROJECT COSTS; PAYMENT OF PROJECT COSTS; REVIEW BY THE STATE

2.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Services, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment.

2.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to exceed and
for the specific time period specified above.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Project Costs at the conclusion of
each monthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In no event shall the funds
provided exceed the amounts specified above.

2.4. Review by the State, Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, Termipation Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. [f the
State disallows costs for which payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.

3. LINE ITEM TRANSFERS:
No more than 10% of funds in each budget line can be transferred between line items as appears on
the budget page without the prior written authorization from the State. Any expenditures which
exceed the approved budgets shall be solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However,
such excess expenditures may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is
permissible by this Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing
the Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to incur
additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior written authorization
from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit 8 Contractor Initial:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State Grant In Aid Program

Exhibit B

State Grant In Aid Program Budget detail

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15:

EXPENSE ITEM

State GIA Funds

Match

Prevention/Intervention

N/A

N/A

Rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect
notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness

0

Essential Services

Assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse
counseling, assistance in accessing other
community services and staff salaries and
benefits

$101,260.00
0

$101,260.00
0

Operations

N/A

N/A

Shelter operational costs such as rent,
utilities, insurance, supplies and taxes

0

0

TOTALS

$101,260.00

$101,260.00

TOTAL GlA+Match

$202,520.00

CA/DHHS/100213

Exhibit B
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

Special Provisions

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,

including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement
are contingent upon continued appropriation or avaitability of funds, including any subsequent
changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or
executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of
appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Notification of Funding Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agreement, in the amount specified in the attached
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall nat be increased but may be decreased in
accordance with this Contract and 24 CFR 841.400(b) and (c).

Add the following to Paragraph 6.1:
6.1. In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal| state, country, or municipal authorities which
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
equal opportunity and housing laws, Section 101 (g), P.L. 99-500, Title Vill of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR
Part 107.

Add the following to Paragraph 6.:
6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:
6.4.1. that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance
with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing
Program regulations, and the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity Certifications and the Applicant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the
Application;
6.4.2. that the grant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program
funds used to assist homeless persons during the calendar year preceding the date of
the Application or were designated for such use through an official action of the
applicable governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the

Application;

6.4.3. that no more than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
expenses,

6.4.4. that, except as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall
not:

6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any building hsted
on the National Register of Historic Places; located in an historic di

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

5. Add the foliowing to Paragraph 7.:

7.4,

7.5.

6. Add the following to Paragraph 8.:

8.3.

immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State
Historic Preservation Officer;

6.4.4.2. conduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
map by the Federal Emergency Management Agency;

6.4.4.3. conduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an
endangered or threatened species designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior’'s Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s
National Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the cntical habitat of such as
species; and

6.4.4.4. be inconsistent with HUD’s environmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or
with the State’s Coastal Zone Management Plan;

6.45. that the Contractor shall make it known that use of the facilities and services is
available to all on a nondiscriminat basis. Where the procedures that the
Contractor intends to use to make knawn the availability of services are unlikely to
reach persons of any particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or
national origin who may qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish
additional procedures that will ensure |that these persons are made aware of the
facility and services;

6.4.6. that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law
and that the Contractor possesses legal authority to carry out the grants activities in
accordance with applicable law and regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development;.

6.4.7. that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity
requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a);

6.4.8. that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,
42 U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

6.4.9. that the Contractor shall comply with|the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that in discharging its obligations under this
Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent,
consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State
that receives Supportive Housing Grant amounts|who exercises or has exercised any functions
or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a
personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,
subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, pr the proceeds thereunder, either for him or
herself or those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for
one year thereafter.
The Contractor shall not employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors
or subcontractors during any period of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility
status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

The State may deobligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
rehabilitation grant if the total costs of the acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation
are less than the approved grant.

8.4. The State may deobligate funds made available under this Contract if any proposed
acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation activities are not begun or completed in
accordance with the development schedule contained in the Application or within a reasonable
time thereafter.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

7. Add the following to Paragraph 9.:

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

The Contractor shall repay the full amount jof any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or
moderate rehabilitation grant if it fails to use the structure for supportive housing for the
homeless for a ten year period following the initial occupancy with funding under this
Agreement.
For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless following the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be redu by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the
date of initial occupancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor's written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer
needed as transitional housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the
Project for the direct benefit of lower income persons. In such event, for purposes of
determining the Contractor's repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

If the Project is taken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds
are available from the eminent domain or other proceeding.

Between the effective date and a date five years| after the Completion Date, at any time during
the Contractor's normal business hours, and as| often as the State shall reasonably demand,
the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,
publication, translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
the Contractor to make available data that would violate any statute, other provisions of this

Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third parties. The term “Contractor” includes all

persons, natural or fictional, who are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an

affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor jn Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of
this Agreement.

During the performance of the Project Activities and for a period of five (5) years after the

Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the following records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.

9.5.2. Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting a determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in kind contributions, labor
time cards, payrolls and other records requested or required by the State.

9.5.3. Contractor and Subcontractor Records: | The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserve property management, project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to the project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is later.

Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year

retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or

the Comptroller General of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the

Contractor shall make available to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller

General, as requested, all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreemept—)The

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor niti
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Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptrolier General,
collectively or separately, to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data|and other information relating to all matters
covered in this Agreement.

8. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language:

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

9. Add the following to Paragraph 14:
144,

10. Add the following to Paragraph 20:

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.
In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with State and shall promptly provide detailed information
to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide
ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

20.1. DEVELOPMENT

20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has confrol of the site and/or structure to be used for
the Project as described in the Application and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

20.1.2. The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total|cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION

20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will faciitate the provision of necessary supportive
services to the residents of the Project.

20.2.2. The Contractor shall assure that the Prpject will be operated in accordance with the
Project Sponsor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application.

20.2.3. The Contractor shall operate the Project as transitional housing for homeless persons
for a ten-year penod following the initial occupancy with grant funds provided pursuant
to this Contract.

20.2.4. Inthe event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Contractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C
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20.2.5.

20.2.6.

2027.

20.2.8.

The Contractor shall assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in
accordance with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
residents to pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or
(3) if the family is receiving payments fof welfare assistance from a public agency and
a part of the payments, adjusted in accardance with the family’s actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated.

The Contractor shall conduct an ong
required by the residents in the Project.
The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commitment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.
The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of the structure and the operation of the Project.

ing assessment of the supportive services

20.3. SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

20.3.1.

2032

20.3.3.

20.4. OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds i

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.
The covenant running with the land, required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following initial occupancy with contracgt funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.
The Contractor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,
for a Project receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
for a Project receiving an acquisition advance, recorded immediately after the
recording of the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

leased from a religious organization, the

Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

2041
2042

2043.

2044.

20.4.5.

20.46.

CA/DHHS/100213

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to
all persons regardless of religion; and
the lease payments will not exceed the fair market rent of the structure without the
rehabilitation; and
the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for
the provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and
unless the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the improvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as|set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor’s financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and

Exhibit C
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20.4.7. the Contractor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may
require. Estimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate
rehabilitation of the Project shall supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials %
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ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Retroactive Payments — Individual Services
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and|agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or
(except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) pripr to a determination that the individual is
eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments — Contractor Services
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement.

3. Audit Requirement
The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General
Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including
the funds received under this Agreement.
The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government: If the federal
funds received under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the
aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the
provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Single Audits of State and Local Governments.

4. Credits
All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other matenals prepared during or resulting
from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following statement: “The
preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, with
funds provided in part or in whole by HUD."

CADHHS/100213 Exhibit C-1 Contractor Initials
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988/ (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contraclors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors usirg this form should send it to:

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled subistance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a|drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initial§:

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements :
January 2009 Date: ‘;d‘ IN l 1 ? U 1 3
Page 1 of 2 -




(©

(d)

(e)
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Page

Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction,;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted empioyees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within| 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation

of paragraphs (a), (b), (), (d), (&), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below tTe site(s) for the performance of work done in

connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

My Friend's Place

7/1/201:}0: 6/30/2015

From:
(Contractor Name) (Penod Covered by this Certification)
F. X. Bruton, President
(Name & Title of rized Contractor Representative)

// June 11, 2013

(Contgdctor Representative’ Signature) D (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:
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NH Department of Health and
STANDARD EXHi
CERTIFICATION REGARDI

Page 1 of 1
uman Services
ITE
G LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period:

through

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and

M

@)

3)

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be

belief, that:
paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with

the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renev
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by spec

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have bee
or attempting to influence an officer or empioyee of any
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of G
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specifi

undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL,

val, amendment, or modification of any Federal
sific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

n paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
ongress in connection with this Federal contract,
c mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
(Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in

accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for

sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants,

nd contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative

agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a matenal representation of fact upon whi
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prer
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who f;

to a civil

of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100

reliance was placed when this transaction was
uisite for making or entering into this transaction
ils to file the required certification shall be subject
000 for each such failure.

F.X. Bruton, President

(Authoniz

My Friend's Place June 11,

d Contractor Representative Name & Title)

2013

(Contractor Name)

(Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying
January 2009

Contractor Initials:

Date:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (confract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required beiow will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaclion. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant leams that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shali not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this| covered transaction, unless authorized by

DHHS.
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initial
Standard Exhibit F — a0
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters U 1 1 v 1 3
January 2009 Date:__-
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7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the| certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a Jower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or valuntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, brbery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen

property;
(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental

entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (l)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal

(contract).
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials
Standard Exhibit F — Q
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters : J
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Tran jons,” without modification in all lower tier

covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
Py / F.X. Bruton, President

(Wntrﬁéﬁr Representative 8ignature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
My Friend's Place June 11, 2013
(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: j
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters ‘
January 2009 Date:_| i ‘ “5) l 1 -
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION RE

ARDING

THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1.

2

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of th

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

F.X. Bruton, President

tractor Representaﬁ\%a Signature)

My Friend's Place

(Authonzed Contractor Representative Name & Title)

June 11, 2013

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act

January 2009

Contractor Initials:

Date: M‘?UN l ]
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

/ = A! ; ': F.X. Bruton, President

(Cél(tractor Representative Signature) ~ (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

My Friend's Place June 11, 2013
(Contractor Name) (Ddte)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initial
Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke J u
January 2009 Date: U ] 3
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Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the G

D ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
GREEMENT

neral Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and

164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to busi
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors an
have access to protected health information under this Agn
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human

(1)

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

ess associates. As defined herein, “Business

d agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
eement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the

Services.

GREEMENT

Definitions.

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term

13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such
Federal Regulations.

“Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same me.
CFR Section 164.501.

as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR

ing as the term “health care operations” in 45

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIIl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health

Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR

Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, prom
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 1 of 6

ulgated under HIPAA by the United States

Contractor Initials:
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health

information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limitec

to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501.

“Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Depart
designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standard

ent of Health and Human Services or his/her

s for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or

indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and

is developed or endorsed by a standards

developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise define

d herein shall have the meaning established

under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintd

Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall

in or transmit Protected Health Information

t, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,

(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide ‘%Ele services outlined under Exhibit A of the

employees and agents, do not use, disclose, main
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Ru

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

in or transmit PHI in any manner that would
le.

L. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

I. As required by law, pursuant to the term
1. For data aggregation purposes for the he

s set forth in paragraph d. below; or
alth care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third

party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to

making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable

assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further

disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notif
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such di

for which it was disclosed to the third party;
y Business Associate, in accordance with the
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to

sclosure is reasonably necessary to provide

services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that

Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busin

PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies|

disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
ess Associate shall refrain from disclosing the

Contractor Initials:

Date,
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associ

by additional restrictions over and above those us

pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the

additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI i
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

Business Associate shall report to the designated
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with
13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sect

Page 3 of ¢

e that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
usiness Associate shall be bound by such
violation of such additional restrictions and

rivacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
Agreement, including any security incident

the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

ions of the Privacy and Security Rule as set

forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its

internal policies and procedures, books and

records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the

Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity

o the Secretary for purposes of determining

Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Brivacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business |associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on

the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, incl
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s busin

uding the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
ess associate agreements with Contractor’s

intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by

standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the
health information.

purpose of use and disclosure of protected

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business

Associate shall make available during normal bus
agreements, policies and procedures relating to th
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
with the terms of the Agreement.

iness hours at its offices all records, books,
e use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
determine Business Associate’s compliance

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR

Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an

amendment of PHI or a record about an individudl contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:
September 2009

Page 3 0of 6 Date:




@

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 4 of 6

Page 4 of 6

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shal| within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. 1f return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to|in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of

permission provided to Covered Entity by individ

Is whose PHI may be used or disclosed by

Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR

Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business As
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to

sociate of any restrictions on the use or
in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the

extent that such restriction may affect Business Assogciate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Contractor Initials:
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Termination for Cause

Page 5 of _®

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either

immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an

opportunity for Business Associate to cure

the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall

have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agre

and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
ement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,

to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to

amend the Agreement, from time to time as is nece

sary for Covered Entity to comply with the

changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and

state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit

Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shal

d Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

I or the application thereof to any person(s)
not affect other terms or conditions which

can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of

this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding

the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the

termination of the Agreement.

Contractor Initials:

Date:




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly execy

My Friend
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ited this Exhibit 1.

's Place

MM DHHS

The State Agency Name

Name of

/ 4

Y

the Contractor

Signdtufe W‘no?n(zed\ Representative /

M A, Anan COM\

F.X. Brut

Siénature of Afithorized Representative

on

Name of Adthorized Representaﬁ%

)
-#kg §~h\r\/+*r&,(Z;ANVWASQtww—”——*

Name of

President

Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

June 11,

Title of Authorized Representative

2013

7//3 0/9--0//-'>

Date

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 6 of 6

Date

Contractor Initials: /7
Date: m l} m ;2”13



NH Department of Health and

STANDARD EXHIEH

Human Services

31T )

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA

) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to

report on data related to executive compensation and associa
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant ma
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting re

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward anc
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must rep;
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting r

Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number fi

Program source

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding

Location of the entity

8) Principle place of performance

9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

10) Total compensation and names of the top five executi

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already ava

3,
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by t
the award or award amendment is made.

ited first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
difications result in a total award equal to or
quirements, as of the date of the award.

d Executive Compensation Information), the

ort the following information for any
equirements:

or grants

action

ves if:
from the Federal government, and those

lable through reporting to the SEC.

he end of the month, plus 30 days, in which

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act,
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Execut

agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified

Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed inform

Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
ve Compensation Information), and further
in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

ation as outlined above to the NH

Departnient of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Findncial Accountability And Transparency Act.

7/—’/’ F.X. Bruton, President

/ 4
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
My Friend's Place June 11, 2013

{(Contractor Name) (Date) y
Contractoy initials: ﬁ
Date: P"‘a{UN 1 ot

Page # of Page #




NH Department of Health and
STANDARD EXHIE

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Pro;
below listed questions are true and accurate.

ol

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:
2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fis
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue i
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $2
from U.S. ?ral contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgr

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is N

If the answer to #2 above is YES, pleas

3. Does the public have access to information about the compx
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 1]
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Inte

YES

NO

Human Services

3T J

visions, | certify that the responses to the

144 920)

cal year, did your business or organization
n U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
5,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
ants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO, stop here
e answer the following:
ensation of the executives in your business

3(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
rnal Revenue Code of 1986?

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly comp
organization are as follows:

Name:
Name:
Name:
Name:

Name:

ensated officers in your business or

Amount: __
Amount:
Amount:
Amount:

Amount:

Contractor initials: .
Date:
Page # of Page #




CERTIFICATE OR VOTE
|, Brenda Gaudet, do hereby certify that:

1. 1am the duly elected Clerk of My Friend’s Place (hereinafter the “Corporation)
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board
of Directors of the Corporation held on June 11, 2013.

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter intp a contract with the State of new
Hampshire, acting through its Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services, concerning the following matter: New Hampshire State
Grant in Aid Funds Program.

RESOLVED: That the President hereby is authorized on behalf of this Corporation to
enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, as he may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force
and effect as of June 11, 2013.

F.X. Bruton is duly elected President of the Corporation.

(Seal) WW

My Friend’s Place SignaMe of Board Secretary/Clerk

“A

State of New Hampshire

County of Strafford
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thijs fé day of 2013
By Brenda Gaudet. \ -
Q
Name:

Title: Notary Public/Justice of the Peace

Commission Expires: A ~ RO —/4




State of Netw Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that MY FRIEND'S PLACE is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
February 3, 1987. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 12™ day of June A.D. 2013

% M‘/
William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Client#: 1009192 MYFRI

ACORD.  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 192043

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ) SSREACT Ginger Marszalek
USI Insurance Services LLC-SCL. | PHONE ' 800-403-4159 4“"@{; Noj: 413-733-7722
PO Box 406 ﬁb'{,‘}{'éi: ginger.marszalek@usi.biz
Portland, ME 04112-0406 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INsURER A : Arch Insurance Company 11150
INSURED
My Friend's Place, Inc. :::::E:z:
368 Washington Street INSURER D
Dover, NH 03820
INSURER E
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN JSSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN| REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TNSR ADDLISUBHR] POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR |WVD POLICY NUMBER M/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY BINDER8839854 07/24/201307/24/2014 EACH OCCURRENGE $1,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PAMGREJQRENTED we) | $100,000
‘ CLAIMS-MADE E OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $2,000,000
POLICY S Loc $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY )
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) |$
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED -
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident)
$
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB OCCUR BINDER8839863 07/24/2013 | 07/24/2014) EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $1,000,000
DED ’ X| RETENTION $10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 5
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D N/A
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, |f more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
f . SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
State of New Hampshire, Dept of THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Health & Human Services, Bureau ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

of Homeless and Housing

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of1 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#510524078/M10524071 VAMCX
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Hodgdon, Wilson & G

Certified Public Account

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S

riffin

ants, P.A.

REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
My Friend's Place
Dover, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying statemen
My Friend’s Place (a Nonprofit Organizati

the related statements of activities, fu
flows for the year then ended. These fi
responsibility of the Organization's
is to express an opinion on these
audits.

We conducted our audit in accg
accepted in the United Sta
that we plan and perform
whether the financial sta
An audit includes examining¥on a test bas
amounts and disclosures in the financial

merica

includes assessing the accounting princi

estimates made by management, as well
financial statement presentation.
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

the financial statements
the

In our opinion,
fairly, in all wmaterial respects,
Friend’'s Place as of June 30,
and its cash flows for the years then

accounting principles generally accepted

America.

Hodgdon, Wilson & Griffin

DATE

nag
nci

th av

it to obtain
jhts are free

We beli

2012 and the

t of financial position of
on) as of June 30, 2012 and
nctional expenses and cash
nancial statements axe the
ement. Our responsibility
al statements based on our

1diting standards generally

Those standards require
reasonable assurance about
of material misstatement.
s, evidence supporting the
statements. An audit also
ples used and significant
as evaluating the overall
eve that our audit provides

1

referred to above present
financial position of My
changes in its net assets
ended in conformity with
in the United States of




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Employee loans
Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land .
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment

Total property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Net property and equipment
ENDOWMENT INVESTMENTS

NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET

MY FRIEND’S PLA

June 30, 2012

ASSETS

é\

CE
POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued earned time

Note payable, current portion

Total current liabilities

NOTE PAYABLE, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part d

-2-

$ 105,247
758

4,102
4,723

885
115,715

87,150
767,342
39,985

6,187
9500, 664
352,331
548,333

8,869

$ 672,917

$ 6,180
7,103
8,694
6,795

28,772

36,204
64,976

bf these financial statements.



MY FRIEND’S PLA!
STATEMENT OF ACTIV|
For the Year Ended June

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Public support and revenue:
Public support
Grants
Donations
United Way
Total public support

OTHER REVENUE

Bingo proceeds, net

Rent and miscellaneous

Other gaming revenue

Interest income

Unrealized loss on investments
Total other revenue
Total public support and revenue

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising
Total functional expenses

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTI%

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

A

ET ASSETS

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Investment income (loss), net of fees
Distributions
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, Beginning
NET ASSETS, Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of

-3~

CE
ITIES

30, 2012

$ 161,147
75,775
19,631

256,553

76,098
20,032
11,012
247

17)
107,372
363,925

{

292,413
60,798
14,669

367,880

( 3,955)

441

INET ASSETS 441

( 3,514)
611,455

$ 607,941

these financial statements.




MY FRIEND’S PLACE
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Management

Program and |General Fundraising Total

Classified advertising and

public relations $ - S 615 $ - S 615
Depreciation expense 19,398 655 - 20,053
Employee benefits 38,679 7,736 1,934 48,349
Insurance 7,519 4,686 - 12,205
Interest expense 2,966 156 - 3,122
Maintenance and repairs 19,781 686 - 20,467
Miscellaneous 3,290 720 1,112 5,122
Office expense 118 567 2,554 3,239
Professional fees - 7,706 - 7,706
Resident support services 1,334 - - 1,334
Salaries and wages 143,638 28,729 7,180 179,547
Supplies 6,431 4,645 1,161 12,237
Taxes, payroll 14,564 2,913 728 18,205
Telephone 4,086 % 215 - 4,301
Training 67 - - 671
Transportation expense e - ~ 726
Utilities "E' " 769 - 29,981
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES ' $ 60,798 $ 14,669 $ 367,880

The accompanying notes are an integral part of| these financial statements.

-4 -




MY FRIEND'S PLACE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended Juneg 30,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activitiest
Unrealized loss on investments
Investment (income) loss, net of fees
Distributions from permanently restricted
net assets
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Grants receivable
~Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Employee loans
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll tages

Accrued earned time
Total adjustments 2

Net cash provided (used) by oPrating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal reduction of long-term debt

Increase (decrease) 1in cash
Cash at beginning of year

CASH AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

2012

$C 3

20

{( 2
3

5

(1

,514)

17
441)

,053

,026)
,158
885)

, 229
339

,702)

, 742

23

20

( 3

(6

, 228

,406)

,312)

10
94

,510

, 737

$ 105

$ 3

1247

, 122

The accompanying notes are an integral part df these financial statements.

-5~




MY FRIEND'’S PLACE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL

Organization
My Friend’'s Place was organized February 3, 19§

tion is to provide safe and supportive emerge

individuals and families experiencing homelegsness in Strafford County,

Hampshire.

Basis of Accounting
Income and expenses
is recognized as it
whether or not cash

is earned and expenses are
is received or paid out at

Financial Statement Presentation

My Friend’s Place reports information regard
activities according to three classes of t a
temporarily restricted net assets, and ane

addition, My Friend’s Place is requir e
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of ¢
liguid investments available {#£T
months or less to be cash equi

My Friend‘s Place maintains a repurchasing acc
Repurchase agreements are
alternatives to certificates of deposit.

rent use w
ts.

held by My Friend’s Place is collateralized by a
or U.S. Treasury notes.

Cash does not include $32,128 held by the Organ
required by State of New Hampshire regulation
Organization in a separate account to be used &

cash is not available for any other purpose.

Marketable Securities

Investments in marketable securities with readi
all investments in debt securities are report
Unrealized gai

statement of financial position.
change in net assets.

are reported on the accrual basis,

s, My Fn

short-term investmer
Trans
made daily to cover checks clearing in operating &

ICIES

7. The purpose of the organiza-
ncy and transitional shelter to
New

which means that income
recognized as they are incurred
that time.

ing its financial position and
ssets: unrestricted net assets,
ntly restricted net assets. 1In
sent a statement of cash flows.

iend’s Place considers all highly
ith an initial maturity of three

punt with a banking institution.
nts, typically sold by banks as
fers to and from the account are
ccounts. The repurchase account
pool of U.S. Government agencies

ization as of June 30, 2012. As
s, this amount was held by the
15 prizes for Bingo games. This

1ly determinable fair values and
ed at their fair wvalues in the
ns and losses are included in the




MY FRIEND'’S PLACE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POl

Promises to Give

LICIES

(CONTINUED)

(continued)

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to My Friend’s

Place that 1is, in substance, unconditional. (
by the donor are reported as increases in
restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which
All other donor-restricted contributions are rey
or permanently restricted net assets depending ¢
When a restriction expires, temporarily restri
to unrestricted net assets. An allowance
promises to give is established based on histox
evaluation of outstanding unconditional promise
During the year ended June 30 2012, managemern
previously recorded as Promises to Give were
Promises to Give as of June 30, 2012 was

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ontributions that are restricted
unrestricted net assets if the
the contributions are recognized.
ported as increases in temporarily
bnn the nature of the restrictions.
cted net assets are reclassified
for uncollectible unconditional
rical experience and management’s
s to give at the end of each year.
it detemined that certain grants
not contributions. As a result,

Unless otherwise indicated, the fair vglu®s of all reported assets and liabilities
which represent financial instrume , f which are held for trading purposes,
approximate the carrying values amounts.

Inventory
Inventory of Bingo materials a

in, first out basis)

nd s}plies are re

or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost
purchased, and at estimated fair values for tho

The cost basis of the land and buildings acquired

based on real estate tax valuation. The cost

recovered using the straight-line method over e
fixtures and equipment is recovered using the

years. The cost of furniture,

corded at the lower of cost (first

for those items which have been
se items which have been donated.
by My Friend’s Place is allocated
of buildings and improvements is
stimated useful lives of 10 to 40

straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 years.

Restatement of Financial Statements

The opening balance of Temporarily Restricted Nef
Management has determined that certain grants

for the year ending June 30, 2012.
previously recorded with Temporarily Restricted

Contributions

Assets has been decreased $85,771

Net Assets were not contributions.

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or

permanently restricted support depending on the

restrictions.

existence or nature of any donor




MY FRIEND'’S PLACE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Donated Services

Contributions of services are recognized in
services enhance or create nonfinancial assets g
provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. My Friend’s Place typically receives
contributed services to assist with general administrative and maintenance tasks.
For the year ended June 30, 2012, no amounts fgr contributions of services were

recognized in the financial statements.

the financial statements if the
r require specialized skills, are

Donated Materials

My Friend’s Place records donated materials at
personal care items and household supply items
recorded in the financial statements because of t
value.

fair value. Donations of food,
for the use of residents are not
he difficulty in determining fair

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of the various programs an
a functional basis. Accordingly,
and supporting services benefite

tivities have been summarized on
een allocated among the programs

O er ac

) e b

Income Taxes
My Friend’s Place has received a ter of deter
the Internal Revenue Service advising it tha
organization under Secticn 501 (c) (3) of the Inte
it is not subject to income tax.
a private foundation.

mination dated June 20, 1988 from
t it qualifies as a non-profit
rnal Revenue Code and, therefore,
My Friend's Hlace is classified as other than

Use of Estimates v
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect certain reported amcunts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through ~-------~ DATE-------- , the date

that the financial statements were available t

o be issued.




MY FRIEND’S PLA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN

NOTE B - ENDOWMENT INVESTMENTS

My Friend'’'s Place is a beneficiary of an agency e
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of
fund, property contributed to The New Hampshire
a separate fund designated for the benefit of M

with its spending policy,
My Friend'’'s Place.
value of the fund per year.

the Foundation makes

The distributions are approx

The estimated valusg

the fund is included in these financial stateme
fund was contributed to The New Hampshire Char
administered for the benefit of My Friend’'s Pl

The endowment investments consist primarily

investments are allocated as follows for the y
Equity securities .
Hedge funds &\
Fixed income

Inflation hedging

Private equity/

Cash and cas

NOTE C -~ ACCRUED EARNED TIME

Accrued earned time consists of a liability for £
is vested with the employees.

CE

TS (CONTINUED)

ndowment fund at The New Hampshire

the resolution establishing this
Charitable Foundation is held as
vy Friend’'s Place. In accordance
distributions from the funds to
imately five percent of the market
of the future distributions from
nts, however, all property in the
itable Foundation to be held and
ace.

of pooled investments.
ears ended June 30, 2012:

Pooled

40%
22%
11%
10%
10%

7%

uture compensated leave time that




MY FRIEND'S PLACE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN]

r's

(CONTINUED)

NOTE D - NOTE PAYABLE
Curyent Long-term
Portiion Portion Total
Mortgage payable, secured by land and
building at 368 Washington Street: in
Dover, NH; monthly payments of principal
and interest only at 6.61%; maturity date
is December, 2017. $ 6,795 $ 36,204 $ 42,999

Maturity of long-term debt over the next five ye
June 30,

ars is as follows for years ending

2013, ... L $ 6,795
2014 7,258
2015 7,753
2016 8,281
2017 8,845
Thereafter. » 4,067
TOTAL 2,999

NOTE E

RESTRICTIONS ON NET A

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of
As of June 30, 2012, temporarily restricted ne

As of June 30, 2012, My Friend's Place has perm
$8,869 invested with The New Hampshire Charital

NOTE F BINGO PROCEEDS, NET

For the year ended June 30, 2012 bingo proceeds,
revenue of $262,832 and other gaming revenue of $5

-10-

amounts for subsequent periods.
t assets was $0.

anently restricted net assets of
ble Foundation.

net of $76,098 consisted of bingo
65,040 less expenses of $§751,774.




MY FRIEND’S PLA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN

NOTE G

RETIREMENT PLAN

My Friend’s Place has adopted a 403 (b) retiremen
who meet certain age and length of service re
percentage of their salary, subject to Inter
Friend’'s Place matches the employee deferral u
For the year ended June 30, 2012, retirement ¢

NOTE H LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

My Friend's Place rents property under cancels

3,
opnt N s

NOTE I CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION

As of June 30, 2012, My Friend'’'s Place h
is included in the cash balance. This
Government agencies or U.S. Treasury4Qo
equivalents. They are not insured

S.

NOTE J - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

My Friend's Place contracts are generally with go
the majority of its receivables and a significang

from that source.

In addition, My Friend's Place has received a sigy

revenue from the operation of Bingo games.

-11...

ders

CE
TS (CONTINUED)
t plan. Under the plan, employees

equirements may elect to defer a
nal Revenue Service limits. My
P to 5% of the employee’s salary.
>Xpense was $2,635.

ble leasing arrangements.

427 in a repurchase account which
collateralized by a pool of U.S.
These amounts are considered cash
21 Deposit Insurance Corporation.

vernment agencies and, therefore,
amount of its revenue are derived

1ificant amount of its fundraising




MY FRIEND’S PLACE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During the year ended June 30,

at 21-23 Hough Street in Dover, New Hampshire.

Friend's Place would have to receive authoriza
the transitional housing facility to another us
tion from HUD would result in repayment of the

My Friend's Place received money under various

1998, My Friend:
United States Department of Housing and Urban
grant was used towards the acquisition of a tran

(CONTINUED)

s Place received a grant from the
Development (HUD). The $99,566
sitional housing facility located
Under the terms of the grant, My
tion from HUD in order to convert
e. Failure to receive authoriza-
grant to HUD.

state and federal grants. Under

the terms of these grants, My Friend's Place was required to use the money within

the grant period for purposes specified in the

of the grant were found not to have been made
My Friend's Place might be required to repay

grant proposal. If expenditures
n compliance with the proposals,
he grantor’s funds.
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MY FRIEND’S PLACE
Mission statement

My Friend’s Place is organized to operate exclusively for
educational and charitable purposes, including but not limited to
providing temporary emergency housing and support for
individuals and families in Strafford County who need such
assistance because of an emergency or adverse situation.




My Friend's Place
Board of Directors

First Name Last Name Position Address City ‘State Zip Phone Email

1 FX Bruton _President ‘37 Fieldstone Dr il

2 Stan 'Robbins Vice President 22 Hillcrest Dr

3 Robert Fuller ~ Treasurer PO Box 1749 "

4 Brenda ‘Gaudet ‘Secretary 67 5th Street I _

S John Guy Member PO Box 215

6 Chuck ‘Mone ‘Member 144 Court St

7 Phyllis LaPointe ‘Member 292 Tolend Rd )

8-Dennis Kostis Member 263 Centrat Ave i i e,

9 Heidi Cluff ‘Member 42 Main St # 21 -
10 Estelle Lewis ‘Member 10 Whittier St =
11 Sue Ford Consumer 41 Maple St R m

12 Sandra Jalbert ‘Member 46 Pinch Hill Rd e

13 Martin Jaffe ‘Member 24 Lexington St r S - - _
14
15

6/4/2013




Robert M.O’Con

“

WORK EXPERIE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 1995 — present. My |
activities for a private not for profit shelter serving |
Planned, organized, and implemented new services
Transitional Housing for homeless families. Raised
to the shelter and to meet ADA compliance standarg
credit with local lending institution. Work with a vo
aspects of policy development, fund-raising and gra

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, 1988 — 1994. Haverh
Inc. Directed program, planning, fiscal and adminis
private corporation with a staff of 135, serving deve
families. Primary responsibilities included board re
evaluation, policy development, community and leg

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIRECTOR:
Newburyport Human Services. Directed financial 4
the preparation of financial reports, preparing and
computerized accounting system. Coordinated inter
rates with funding sources. Directed Human Resou
Supervised acquisition and management of building
contractors. Negotiated line of credit and mortgage

nell

-

NCE

Friend’s Place, Dover, NH. Direct all
homeless individuals and families.
through a $600,000 grant for

over $250,000 to build an addition
]s. Negotiated mortgages and line of
lunteer board of directors in all

nt writing.

ill Newburyport Human Services,
strative activities for a $3.5 million
lopmentally disabled people and their
lations, program planning and
islative relations, and fund raising.

1984 — 1988. Haverhill
nd administrative activities including
r:anaging budgets, implementing a
rnal/external audits, and negotiated
rce management and payroll systems.
s, equipment, and external
s with financial institutions.

PROGRAM DIRECTOR: 1979 - 1983 Communkty action Inc, Haverhill MA.

Managed the Department of Energy weatherization
Assistance Programs. Implemented new services, s
and a nationally recognized energy efficiency progr
prepared and monitored budgets. Recruited, trained
Appointed member of the City of Haverhill energy ¢
responsibility for winter emergency planning.

ACTION - VISTA VOLUNTEER 1975 - 1976. (

the Low Income Home energy

uch as the energy assistance program
am. Wrote grant applications,

and supervised a staff of 30.
conservation commission with

Community organizer for the

Samahan Development Corporation in Stockton, CA. Wrote grant applications,

organized a community food coop, and prepared the
Stockton Community Health Plan. Developed prog
Indian lodge alcohol treatment center. University
community college, Beverly MA. Wrote grant appli
budget. Recruited and trained the first class of Uniy
for a Massachusetts Community College.

mental health component of the
rams for the San Joaquin County
year for ACTION. North Shore
cation and developed program
ersity Year for ACTION volunteers




ADDITION INFORMATION:

Current Affiliations

Member of the National Ski Patrol at Gunstock Recreation area. Elected as NH Region
Director. Certified as an outdoor emergency care [instructor and American Heart
Association CPR instructor. Certified as an Emergency Medical Technician.

Member of Rotary Club of Dover, NH. Club President 2004/05.

Past Affiliations

Former member and treasurer of the John Ashford Link House board of directors.
Private organization providing residential and therapeutic services for alcohol and drug

addicted men.

Former board mermber and treasurer - American Red Cross, Strafford County.

Former board member and treasurer of the Dover A

dult Learning Center. A non-profit

organization providing high school diploma and GED preparation for adults.

Former Board member, Rockingham Community A

ction, Inc.

Former Board Member, treasurer and Incorporator of the Homeless Center for Strafford
County. A seasonal shelter providing emergency shelter for homeless women and

families

United States Army veteran. Served as a personnel

EDUCATION

specialist in the Republic of Vietnam,

Master of Human Service Management, Lesley University, Cambridge MA 1985

Bachelors Degree, Education, University of Massac

Associate of Science Business Management/Accour
College, 1972

husetts, Amherst. 1975

iting. North Shore Community




My Friend’s Place

Key Administrative Personnel

Full Salary of key administrative personnel and percentage of each salary
to be paid through this grant.

Robert M. O’Connell, Executive Director Annual Salary 52,031
Percentage from this grant 20%




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: State Grant-In-Aid Funds Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 | State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Conc¢ord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 | Contractor Address
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual P.O.Box 353
Violence Concord, NH 03302-0353
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-224-8893 05-95-42-423010-7928 June|30, 2015 $ 554,746.00
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10) State Agency Telephone Number
Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator (603) 271-9197
1.11 Contractor Sigm 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
K / Frosn P Ca Doand.
/07'& . Chon shpl— Hosid I Cassopedson Chadr
¢

1.13 /\cknowl!dgement State of A/ County of Memrna e dy

On?~ z }before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he e
1.12.

identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
xecuted this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal] K A /-)%/}7)/\/

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Kizui_Asurod  Wotay Fuslic.

1.14 State Agency Slgnature 1.15

Name and Tltle State Agency Signatory

m 4"/07 CONS

/WMA\* Ack oc ke M:c‘%f&/\

Approva(ﬁy/tlﬂN H. Depa@dministration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: = &-\ On: /B8AL, 20 /3
y: A e "I‘.//c/rm)() /"M'c./ﬂc.,) n: .

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6, COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OQPPORTUNITY.

6!1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
npt discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
h

a

ndicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
irmative action to prevent such discrimination.

.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
nited States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
ovisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal

mployment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
ermit the State or United States access to any of the
ontractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
scertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
nd the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

. PERSONNEL.

.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
ersonnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
arrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
ualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable

.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
is Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
ompletion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,

d shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
orporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
erform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
mployee or official, who is materially involved in the
rocurement, administration or performance of this

greement. This provision shall survive termination of this
greement.

.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or

er successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
f any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
e Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: m

Date: 512; Z;é




8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of,, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
r other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

(=]

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
terest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
ervices shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
ior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
ployees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
tate, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers

d employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
ased or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
aimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
ontractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
ontained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
vereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
rvive the termination of this Agreement.

4. INSURANCE.

4.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
aintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
signee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

4.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
laims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
f not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
ccurrence; and

4.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
roperty subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
ss than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
4.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

4.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initia]s:/g/ C

Date:




certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State Grant In Aid Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

State Grant In Aid Program

1.

PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

1.1. Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to comply with

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

2. SERVICES:
The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during
services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

2.1.

2.2

CA/DHHS/M100213

the program narrative, budget detail and narrativ

, and amendments thereto, for Services,

operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved by the Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, Department of Health and
Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may impact/on the Services described herein, the State
has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements for the funds provided under this Agreement so as to achieve

compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable
to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate

records shall be maintained by the Contractor to
funding from such public sources of funds.

document actual funds received or denials of

The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service modality
describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services rendered, and staff

required to provide the service, as may be requir

ed by the State. Monthly reports may be

required at the discretion of the State. Reports shall include, but are not limited to, details of
compliance with the following key program outcomes:
1.4.1. Anincrease of 5% of program participants will exit the program to permanent housing,

bringing the total to 40%.

1.4.2. The average length of stay in this program will be reduced by 10%.
All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or

permanent programs are required to be licensed

to provide client level data into the New

Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this

contract must be familiar with and follow NH HM
required for data entry, accuracy of data entered

S policy, including specific information that is
and time required for data entry. Current NH

HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the following website: http:/Amww.nh-

hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data
delay or withholding of reimbursements until suc
confirmed by the State.

New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant
A:28 and 126-A:29 as well as He-M 314
Contractor shall use the New Hampshire Emergg
O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as re
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect n

into HMIS in a timely fashion could result in the
h reports are received or data entries are

the term of this Agreement, it will provide
-In-Aid Program RSA 126-A:25, 126-A:27, 126-
ency Shelter State Grant-In-Aid funds for:

nt with eviction notice, mortgage with
otice, and other activities to prevent

homelessness.

Xl Essential Services, such as assistance in fi

ing permanent housing, employment

counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services,

and staff salaries and benefits.
Operations Activities, including shelter oper:
and supplies.

Exhibit A
Page t of 1

tional costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,

Contractor Initials %



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Program

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

State Grant In Aid Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A — State Grant in
Aid Program.
This contract is funded 100% by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY14 not to exceed $277,373.00
SFY15 not to exceed $277,373.00
Federal Funds: Not Applicable

1. PROGRESS REPORTS:
Semi-annual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which identify the status of the
Services performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining services prior to the Completion Date
and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the|services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the
month following the end of each six month period on farms supplied by the State.

2. PROJECT COSTS; PAYMENT OF PROJECT COSTS; REVIEW BY THE STATE

2.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Services, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment.

2.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to exceed and
for the specific time period specified above.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Project Costs at the conclusion of
each monthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In no event shall the funds
provided exceed the amounts specified above.

2.4. Review by the State, Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.

3. LINEITEM TRANSFERS:
No more than 10% of funds in each budget line can be transferred between line items as appears on
the budget page without the prior written authorization/from the State. Any expenditures which
exceed the approved budgets shall be solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However,
such excess expenditures may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is
permissible by this Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing
the Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to incur
additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior written authorization
from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit 8 Contractor Initials
Page 1 of 2 g
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seryices

State Grant In Aid Program

Exhibit B

State Grant In Aid Program Budget detail

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15:

EXPENSE ITEM State GIA Funds Match
Prevention/intervention N/A N/A

Rent with eviction notice, mortgage with 0 0
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect

notice, and other activities to prevent

homelessness

Essential Services $313,888.00 $313,888.00
Assistance in finding permanent housing, | 0 0
employment counseling, substance abuse

counseling, assistance in accessing other

community services and staff salaries and

benefits

Operations $240,858.00 $240,858.00
Shelter operational costs such as rent, 0 0

utilities, insurance, supplies and taxes

TOTALS $554,746.00 $554,746.00

TOTAL GlA+Match

$1,109,492.00

CA/DHHS/100213

Exhibit B
Page 2 of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

Special Provisions

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement
are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent
changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or
executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of
appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Coptractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Notification of Funding Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agreement, in the amount specified in the attached
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall not be increased but may be decreased in
accordance with this Contract and 24 CFR 841.400(b) and (c).

Add the following to Paragraph 6.1:
6.1. In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, country, or municipal authorities which
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
equal opportunity and housing taws, Section 101 (g), P.L. 99-500, Title Vill of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR
Part 107.

Add the following to Paragraph 6.:
6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:

6.4.1. that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance
with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing
Program regulations, and the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity Certifications and the Applicant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the
Application;

6.4.2. that the grant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program
funds used to assist homeless persons during the calendar year preceding the date of
the Application or were designated [for such use through an official action of the
applicable governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the

Application;

6.4.3. that no more than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
expenses;

6.4.4. that, except as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall
not:

6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any buiiding listed
on the National Register of Historic Places; located in an historic district;

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials ﬂ/c
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5. Add the following to Paragraph 7.:

6.

CA/DHHS/100213

7.4.

7.5.

Add the following to Paragraph 8.:

8.3.

8.4.

immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for in¢lusion on the National Register by the State
Historic Preservation Officer,;
conduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
map by the Federal Emergency Management Agency;

conduct any such activity whi%h will jeopardize the continued existence of an

6.4.42.

6.4.4.3.
endangered or threatened species designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior’s Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s
National Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as
species; and
be inconsistent with HUD’s environmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or
with the State's Coastal Zone Management Plan;

that the Contractor shall make it known that use of the facilities and services is
available to all on a nondiscriminatory basis. Where the procedures that the
Contractor intends to use to make known the availability of services are unlikely to
reach persons of any particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or
national origin who may qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish
additional procedures that will ensure that these persons are made aware of the
facility and services;
that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law
and that the Contractor possesses legal authority to carry out the grants activities in
accordance with applicable law and regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development;.
that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity
requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a);
that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,
42 U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulatipns at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

that the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

6.4.4.4,

6.4.5.

6.4.6.

6.4.7.

6.4.8.

6.4.9.

It is understood and agreed by the parties hergto that in discharging its obligations under this
Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent,
consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State
that receives Supportive Housing Grant amounts who exercises or has exercised any functions
or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a
personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,
subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or
herself or those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for
one year thereafter.
The Contractor shall not employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors
or subcontractors durirng any period of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility
status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

The State may deobligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
rehabilitation grant if the total costs of the acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation
are less than the approved grant.

The State may deobligate funds made available under this Contract if any proposed
acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation activities are not begun or completed in
accordance with the development schedule contained in the Application or within a reasonable

time thereafter.

Exhibit C
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7.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

Add the following to Paragraph 9.:

94,

9.5.

The Contractor shall repay the full amount

moderate rehabilitation grant if it fails to use

of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or
the structure for supportive housing for the

homeless for a ten year period following the initial occupancy with funding under this

Agreement.

For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless following the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduc¢ed by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the

date of initial occupancy, the Contractor will

not be required to repay any portion of the

acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor's written request, the Sta

e may determine that the Project is no longer

needed as transitional housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the

Project for the direct benefit of lower income persons.

In such event, for purposes of

determining the Contractor’'s repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long asl|it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

If the Project is taken by eminent domain

or seizure, the Contractor must repay the

acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds

are available from the eminent domain or other

Between the effective date and a date five yea

proceeding.

s after the Completion Date, at any time during

the Contractor’'s normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably demand,

the Contractor shall make available to the
publication, translation, or for any other purpo
the Contractor to make available data that wg
Agreement, or agreements with unrelated thi
persons, natural or fictional, who are control
affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractg
this Agreement.
During the performance of the Project Activit
Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the
9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed recd
under this Agreement.

9.5.2. Fiscal Records: Books, records, docu

State all data for examination, duplication,
se. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
uld violate any statute, other provisions of this
rd parties. The term “Contractor” includes all
ed by, under common ownership with, or an
r in Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of

s and for a period of five (5) years after the
following records and accounts:
rds of all direct work performed by its personnel

ments and other statistical data evidencing and

permitting a determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other

expenses incurred by the Contractor

and all income received or collected by the

Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be

maintained in accordance with accoun

ting procedures and practices acceptable to the

State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall

include, without limitation, all ledgers,
bills, requisitions for materials, invent
time cards, payrolls and other records

books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,

ories, valuations of in kind contributions, labor

requested or required by the State.

9.5.3. Contractor and Subcontractor Records: The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserve property management, project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to the project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is later.
Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year
retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or

9.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

the Comptroller General of the United States,
Contractor shall make available to the Stat
General, as requested, all records pertainin

Exhibit C
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Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, or [representatives of the Comptroller General,
collectively or separately, to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, invoices, matenals, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other information relating to all matters
covered in this Agreement.

8. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this cantract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language:

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

9. Add the foliowing to Paragraph 14:

14.4.

10. Add the following to Paragraph 20:

20.1.

20.2.

CA/DHHS/100213

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with State and shall promptly provide detailed information
to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide
ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned| to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State,| the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Pian.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

DEVELOPMENT
20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for

the Project as described in the Applica
The Contractor shall keep and maintai
required by the State as may be neces
disposition of grant funds, and the tot
with grant funds.
OPERATION

20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will f3

20.1.2.

services to the residents of the Project.
Project will be operated in accordance with the

20.2.2. The Contractor shall assure that the

tion and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

n such books, records, and other documents as
sary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
al cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,

icilitate the provision of necessary supportive

Project Sponsor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the

Application.

The Contractor shall operate the Proj
for a ten-year period following the initi
to this Contract.

20.2.3.

20.2.4.
years following the initial occupancy
above, the Contractor shall repay the f
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.

Exhibit C
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{n the event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
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20.2.5.

20.2.6.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

20.3.

20.31.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

The Contractor shall assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in
accordance with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
residents to pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or
(3) if the family is receiving payments for welfare assistance from a public agency and
a part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated.
The Contractor shall conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services
required by the residents in the Project.
The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commitment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.
The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of the structure and the operation of the Project.

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.
The covenant running with the land, required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following initial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.
The Contractor shall ensure that the qovenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,

204.

for a Project receiving a rehabilitation
for a Project receiving an acquisiti
recording of the deed for the structure
OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds
Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains
20.4.1
all persons regardless of religion; and

advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
on advance, recorded immediately after the
acquired with the acquisition advance.

is leased from a religious organization, the
the following provisions:

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to

he fair market rent of the structure without the

any portion of the structure that is not used for
the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the

s set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the

20.4.2. the lease payments will not exceed t
rehabilitation; and

20.4.3. the cost of improvements that benefit
the provision of supportive housing for
religious organization, and

20.4.4. unless the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the improvements, and

20.4.5. the Contractor shall comply with the |policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are madified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

20.4.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

the Contractor’'s financial managemerjt system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and

Contractor Initials W
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20.4.7. the Contractor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may
require. Estimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate
rehabilitation of the Project shall be supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.

C
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ADDITIONAL SPECIAL

PROVISIONS

1. Retroactive Payments — Individual Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,

agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood an
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contra
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement and no payme
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on w
(except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) p
eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments — Contractor Services
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this 4
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood an

d agreed by the parties hereto, that no

ctor for any services provided to any individual
nts shall be made for expenses incurred by the
hich the individual applies for services or

rior to a determination that the individual is

Agreement or in any other document,
d agreed by the parties hereto, that no

payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contthor for any costs incurred for any purposes

prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement.

3. Audit Requirement

The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General

Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified
the funds received under this Agreement.

Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including

The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government: If the federal
funds received under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the
aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the

provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Single Audits of State

4. Credits

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, rtn

from the performance of the services or the Agreement s

nd Local Governments.

d other materials prepared during or resulting
Il include the following statement: “The

preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, with

funds provided in part or in whole by HUD.”

Exhibit C-1
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STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FRE

WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prg
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 198
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s r
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certific

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVI
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS,

This certification is required by the regulations implen
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D

yvisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
B (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
epresentative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
ation:

DUALS

- CONTRACTORS

enting Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
;41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989

regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the
21691), and require certification by grantees {and by infer
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Sec

May 25, 1990 Federal Reqister (pages 21681-
nce, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
on 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a

grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one

certification to the Department in each federal fiscal yea

in lieu of certificates for each grant during the

federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the

certification shall be grounds for suspension of paym

nts, suspension or termination of grants, or

government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 033

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to p

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled s
and specifying the actions that will be taken ag

(b)
(1)

The dangers of drug abuse in the

(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining

3) Any available drug counseling, re
and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requi
January 2009

Page 1 of 2

el

1-6505
vide a drug-free workplace by:
the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

bstance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
inst employees for violation of such prohibition;

Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

orkplace;

a drug-free workplace;

habilitation, and employee assistance programs;

upon employees for drug abuse violations

Contractor lnitials:e/ C
Date: 7@ / / ':
— 11
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

) Abide by the terms of the statement| and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee pr otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

{j] Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted
(1) Taking appropriate personnel actiony against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (¢), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip|code) (list each location)

Check []if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Mt Coali}on .ha/—
ﬂD/"\bﬁf) dge)éuﬂ/ ﬂ) From2-{ -1 3% To: b - 0"/5’

S e g gw - gy 4o

(Contractor Name) / (Period Covered by this Certiﬁﬁation)

Pob Chompophesson  (Board st Diiactos Lhaspe son

(Name & Title of Authorized Confractor Represenfative)

ﬁéﬁ Cherzs b '7/”//3

(Cont or Repﬁsentatlve Signature) / {Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initialsm
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements 7 q 7 / 2
January 2009 Date: o2
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] Human Services
BITE
NG LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,

and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - C
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Titie {V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XiX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title V1

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period:2~/-/3through (, -30 -1 F

identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

ONTRACTORS

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge a

(N
person for influencing or attempting to influence an d
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an em
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, ren
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by sg

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have b

@)

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will b

nd belief, that:

e paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
fficer or employee of any agency, a Member of
ployee of a Member of Congress in connection with
rewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
vecific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

een paid or will be paid to any person for influencing

or attempting to influence an officer or employee of gny agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or

employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by spe
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Forn
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified a

The undersigned shall require that the language of this
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and d

©)

This certification is a material representation of fact upon wh
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a pre
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person wh
to a civil penailty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $1

%/’5

(Contrdctor Regfresentative Signatyfe)

(Authd

N H# Coalition Acamst Domesh? ;

Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
cific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
n LLE, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
s Standard Exhibit E-1.)

certification be included in the award document for
, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
sclose accordingly.

lich reliance was placed when this transaction was

requisite for making or entering into this transaction

o fails to file the required certification shall be subject

00,000 for each such failure.

Ch ATS‘/_OP Acgen V30a.el I resfos
rized Contractor*Representative Name & Title}: Lx&:

pes

éexm/ prélua_

(Contractor Name) [4 (Date)
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January 2009

Contractor initials: ? |/O

'7/01/,1;3
/7

Date:




NH Department of Health an
STANDARD EXk

Page _L of &_

d Human Services

1IBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 1254
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (co
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certifig
in denial of participation in this covered trans

9 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,

further agrees to have the Contractor’'s
the General Provisions execute the following

ntract), the prospective primary participant is

ation required below will not necessarily result
tion. If necessary, the prospective participant

shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or

explanation will be considered in connection

ith the NH Department of Health and Human

Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of

the prospective primary participant to furnish

certification or an explanation shall disqualify

such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall prpvide immediate written notice to the DHHS

agency to whom this proposal (contract) is s
participant learns that its certification was
erroneous by reason of changed circumstance

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,”

bmitted if at any time the prospective primary
erroneous when submitted or has become
S.

“suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered

transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause
and Coverage sections of the rules implemern
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by
the proposed covered transaction be entered
tier covered transaction with a person who i
voluntarily excluded from participation in th
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility
January 2009

Page 1 of 3

have the meanings set out in the Definitions

iting Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower

s debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or

s covered transaction, unless authorized by

Contractor lnitials:f Q C
Date: 7/ q,/ / 3

Matters
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7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered| Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligibie, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is|not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary| course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or }oluntarily excluded from participation in this

transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to|the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactjons by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, dttempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a ¢ontract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
propenrty;

(¢) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (l}(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:/(//—c
Standard Exhibit F —
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters / /

January 2009 Date: 7 7 /?
Page 2 0of3 / / -




LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the b
principals:
(a) are not presently debarred, suspende
or voluntarily excluded from partic
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier parti

such prospective participant shall attac

The prospective lower tier participant further agre
will include this clause entitled “Certification Rega
Voluntary Exclusion - LLower Tier Covered Trans
covered transactions and in all solicitations for low

@é%@m& L~ Chy

3 a3

contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
est of its knowledge and belief that it and its

Page

d, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
ipation in this transaction by any federal

cipant is unable to certify to any of the above,
zh an explanation to this proposal (contract).

es by submitting this proposal (contract) that it

rding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

actions,” without modification in all lower tier
er tier covered transactions.

Yo fophason, [Poedel Ovreds

{Contrattor Re‘{resentative Signature) (Author]

NI+ Coal Ao ,4,%,,57# Errres

zed Contractor Representative Name & Title) £ ha ’Vm

e g Sexoal Violonce

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility
January 2009
Page 3 of 3

Contractor Initials: K/&‘
/)13

Matters
Date:




NH Department of Health an

STANDARD EXH

[ o]

Page '
d Human Services

1IBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING

THE AMERICANS WITH DISABIL]]

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Pro
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of th
certification:
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contrac
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of th

&?Zm/7(34h4ﬁhlk>,.:?okmeJv

TIES ACT COMPLIANCE

visions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
e General Provisions, to execute the following

) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
e Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

/BOG/BQa?L

( ontrac rRepresentatlveS nature) (Authorized

NH Log l Hon

1A9f ppﬂ\ﬁb}s

Dﬁpke«sor) Direas, Chaspeso

Contractor Representative Name & Title)

. [ZSeaw-/ Violen co

Ag

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act

January 2009
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7/]12

Date:




Page _Lof _L

d Human Services

NH Department of Health a

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal| grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative campliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Pt Chabfl—  Robii C ey

M/«ﬂ OAI'\ /1 .{,J’Dp}‘\&c’m D, ~ettoo Chay e —
(7ntrac1 r Representativ Slgnature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

ViVlea [Oﬂ/fﬂo-—mf%ﬂ st fmag Kz o Sewal LT lence

(Contractor Name) bte)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: K/ C/

Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke

January 2009 Date: 7 q// 7)
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STANDARD EXHIBIT 1
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accoun
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to bus
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors a
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

tability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the

ness associates. As defined herein, “Business
nd agents of the Contractor that receive, use or

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such t
Federal Regulations.

erm in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501.

13

CFR Section 164.501.

Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations™ in 45

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portabilityl and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law

104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the
and shall include a person who qualifies as a pers¢
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, pror
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 1 of 6

Security of Individually Identifiable Health

term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
bnal representative in accordance with 45 CFR

Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
nulgated under HIPAA by the United States

Contractor Initials: l z_/%‘_f

Date: '7//q//3
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and| is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informati

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L. For the proper management and adminjstration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
I11. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to| making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: ” C/
September 2009

Page 2 of 6 Date: 7[/ cll/ / 6
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Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 3 of 6

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associz
by additional restrictions over and above those us

pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated

Page 3 of é

ate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
es or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
Business Associate shall be bound by such
n violation of such additional restrictions and

Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,

any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident

involving Covered Entity data, in accordance wit
13402.

h the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of it
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the

s internal policies and procedures, books and
received from, or created or received by the
to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, in¢luding the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in arder to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Contractor Initials: /é/ C
Date: '7// 9/ /j
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such

disclosures as would be required for Covered Enti

to respond to a request by an individual for

an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to

forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the

individual’s request to Covered Entity would

cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security

Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as

Within ten (10) business days of termination of
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified b,
created or received by the Business Associate in
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI.

disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed

to the individual’s request as required by such
soon as practicable.

the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
y Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
connection with the Agreement, and shall not
If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall

continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires

that the Business Associate destroy any or all
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accardance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR

Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed

Associate of any restrictions on the use or
to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the

extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 4 of 6
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Termination for Cause

Pge 9 ot

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of

the Business Associate Agreement set forth herei
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by,
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Co
Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms
have the same meaning as those terms in the Priva

n as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either

an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines

vered Entity shall report the violation to the

used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
cy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as

amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associ
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is net
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privac)
state law.

ate agree to take such action as is necessary to

cessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
y and Security Rule, and applicable federal and

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with

respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf

of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPA A, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)

or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity sh

all not affect other terms or conditions which

can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of

this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit 1 regardin
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections o}
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and star
termination of the Agreement.

g the use and disclosure of PHI, return or

f the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
1dard contract provision #13, shall survive the

Contractor Initials: K/ C

Date: 7/9 /8
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cuted this Exhibit I.
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The State Agency Name

N

Name of the Contractor
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Date
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STANDARD EXH

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL

d Human Services
IBITJ

FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFAT

[A) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,00(
report on data related to executive compensation and asso

Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
ciated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.

If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or

over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward ¢
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must r
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting

1
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program numbe
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundin
Location of the entity

8) Principle place of performance

9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

10) Total compensation and names of the top five exec
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues a

revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already a

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data b
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Proj

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency A

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Exec
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identif]

Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed info

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

requirements, as of the date of the award.
and Executive Compensation Information), the

eport the following information for any
y requirements:

r for grants

g action

utives if:
re from the Federal government, and those

vailable through reporting to the SEC.

y the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which

visions agrees to comply with the provisions of
ct, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
utive Compensation Information), and further
led in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

rmation as outlined above to the NH
with all applicable provisions of the Federal

B s a-sl ot

%é/% C%m»

(C¢ntractor Representative Signature)

Kb

(Authorize

hrd "",ﬂﬁmon. Diveefsrs Chavpe®on
>d Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Lz[SQwa,/l/ibM

NUE CoalsAon ,4?1&/,157" [omes?y

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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NH Department of Health an
STANDARD EXH

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General P
below listed questions are true and accurate.

O 20 4

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenug
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, suby

et

If the answer to #2 above is

NO

d Human Services

IBITJ

rovisions, I certify that the responses to the

757

fiscal year, did your business or organization

> in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
525,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

S

s NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business

or organization through periodic reports filed under section
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Ir

S

If the answer to #3 above is

NO
If the answer to #3 above is NO, plea

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly con
organization are as follows:

Name:
Name:
Name:
Name:

Name:

13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
iternal Revenue Code of 19867

S
YES, stop here
se answer the following:

npensated officers in your business or

Amount:
Amount:
Amount:
Amount:

Amount:

Contractor initial :%
Date: 7/9/(3
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State of Netw Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL
VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed April 30, 1981. I further
certify that it is in good standing a.s far as this office is concerned, having filed the

return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the [Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5™ day of June A.D. 2013

ey Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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OF VOTE

{Corporation with

Ovzanne Larvey

out Seal)

, do hereby certify that:

iName of Clerk of the Corperutiopgf cannct bz cont

ract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk of /L/A‘ (Bq//%v,m/n{f-ﬂp”aﬁz 7/&&,@/ V/O'M

{Corperation !
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions d
Directors of the Corporation duly held on [}

16)
y adopted at a meeting of the Board of

ﬁ,pz o/3:

1Date)

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract
acting through its Department of Health and Human Se

donreshcviobute o hodder

services.

RESOLVED: That the 4?2,94@2,4 PDiyeedrs,

afory:

~
—

iTule of Contract
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to en
and to execute any and all documents, agreements and
revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem
3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or
as of the day of , 201 3.

Date Contrace

Si

wame of Cortract SiGnatory:

of the Corporation.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Mpry macle

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

81/7 a nne /-/ﬁ/z/‘&ﬁ

: a1 Clerk of the Co 1 EVIn] 51 L

N

l\..,ll it

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management

21is the duly elected

with the State of New Hampshire,

rvices,l}h"/ﬁ, for the provision of

ter into the said contract with the State
other instruments, and any amendments,
necessary, desirable or appropriate.

revoked, and remain in full force and effect

radd \it IOV

N T o [,
I Sigrsturs oA Jizie 51 e xfrf)é.hdi-@ﬁ:

Qﬂ day of,Zu/;l ,20/3

%Axm MMW\

xw” 1y Pl ool b Foaos

Commission Expires: ZZQ%[ [gé
July 1, 2005
Page 1 of 1
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
7/15/2013

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

21 Meadowbrook Lane
P O Box 7425

PRODUCER CONTACT pat Mack
E & S Insurance Services LLC FHONE e (603)293-2791 [R% Noj: (603)293-7188

ADbHEss: Pat@esinsurance.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Gilford NH 03247-7425 INSURERA :Great American Ins Group
INSURED nsurerB:First Comp

NH Coalition Against Domestic and INSURER C :

Sexual Violence INSURER D

PO Box 353 INSURER E :

Concord NH 03302 INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:2013 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

INSR ADOL, POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER MM/DD/YYYY) | (MMDDIYYYY) LIMTTS
GENERAL LIABIUTY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EQ&?E& g?é%r%m, $ 100,000
A CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MAC5464236-12 [1/15/2013 5/15/2014 | yepEXP (Any oneperson) | ' 5,000
- PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
— GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
X | poLicy PRO- Loc $
MBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY C[E ?, accident] $ 100,000
A ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ﬁbl:rgsWNED iﬁ?&SULED MAC5464236-12 19/15/2013 |5/15/2014 [ BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
X | NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
X | UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB X | CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
DED [x I RETENTION $ 10,000 UMB8234007-05 5/15/2013 [5/15/2014 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WG STATU- | |om.
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
8;‘;, ggg/aggggm&gugz@(swnvs I:l NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
(Mandatory In NH) r’C0135293-02 ﬂ/15/2°13 5/15/2014 | £\ DpiSEASE - EA EMPLOYEH § 500,000
If yes, describe under |
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Atach ACORD 101,Additional Remarks Schedule, If more space s required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH, Dept of Health & Human Serv
Bureau of Homeless & Housing Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3852

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE |EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Pat Mack/PAT P»*——-—M Yo

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INS025 2n1005) 01

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Tha ACORD nama and lnnn ara ronictarand marke nf ACORD
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
6A HILLS AVENUE

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE QF FAX#(603)226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Board of Directors
New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial pq
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organiza
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, for the year tl
responsibility of the Organization’s management. Our respo
statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized ¢
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
dated October 5, 2011; we expressed an unqualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standard
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gove
General of the United States. Those standards require that wi

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of ¢

sition of the New Hampshire Coalition

ition) as of June 30, 2012, and the related statement of
hen ended. These financial statements are the

nsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
pmparative information has been derived from New

’s June 30, 2011 financial statements and, in our report
on those statements.

Is generally accepted in the United States of America and
zrnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller

e plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a

test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures i

n the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation. We believe that o

audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2012, and the changes in its net
assets and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have
consideration of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domg
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provi

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is t

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testl

over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinig
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 4
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financia

management and was derived from and relates directly to the
the financial statements. The information has been subjected

financial statements and certain additional procedures, includ
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepan
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance wi
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditur

respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Lol ~ Ao, P

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 21, 2012

also issued our report dated September 21, 2012, on our
estic and Sexual Violence’s internal control over financial
1sions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants

o describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
ing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
assessing the results of our audit.

on on the financial statements as a whole. The

presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
udits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit

| statements. Such information is the responsibility of
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the

ing comparing and reconciling such information directly
e the financial statements or to the financial statements
th auditing standards generally accepted in the United
es of federal awards is fairly stated in all material




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Financial Position
June 30,2012 and 2011

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents, temporarily restricteq
Grants Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Building
Equipment
Building Improvements

Less Accumulated Depreciation *
Total Property and Equipment, Net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See Independent Auditors' Report an
2-

2012

$ 254997
1 68,179
842,592
11,256
1,177,024

52,143
267,592

106,511
25,736
: 451,982
(181,148)
270,834

1,447,858

4,418
723,608

59,807
787,833

65,192

526,654
68,179
594,833

§ 1,447,858

d Notes to Financial Statements

2011

174,432
46,781
1,195,077
12,148

1,428,438

52,143
267,592
106,283

25,736

451,754
(166,893)

284,861

1,713,299

4,161
997,002
57,857

1,059,020

69,606

537,892
46,781

584,673

3

1,713,299




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities
June 30, 2012 and 2011

UNSTRICTED NET ASSETS

Support and Revenue:
Grant Revenue
Contributions
Donated Services
Miscellaneous income
Total Support and Revenue

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Restrictions Satisfied by Payments

EXPENSES
Program Services
Management and General
Fundraising
Total expenses

»

Increase (Decrease) in Unstricted Net Assets
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Grant Revenue
Restrictions Satisfied by Payments
Increase in Temporarily
Restricted Net Assets
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements

3-

2012 2011
$ 4,694,296 $ 5,742,516
219,951 215,811
127,083 66,926
36,442 48,974
5,077,772 6,074,227
79,327 42,633
4,665,244 5,396,607
487,368 523,572
15,725 16,890
5,168,337 5,937,069
(11,238) 179,791
100,725 68,000
(79,327) (42,633)
21,398 25,367
10,160 205,158
584,673 379,515
$ 594,833 $ 584,673




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexuzll Violence
Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2012 with Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2011

Salaries

Payroll taxes

Health and Life Insurance
Dental & Other Emp Benefits
Professional Services
Contract/Grant Services
Memberships
Publications
Advertising/Recruitment
Copying

Office Supplies

Postage

Printing

Equipment & Moving
Maintenance & Repair
Rent Expense

Interest

Parking

Insurance

Retreats

PMC Stipend

Staff Development
Travel

Telephone

Technology

Utilities

Miscellaneous

AVAP Miscellaneous Expense
Direct Training
Community Education
Depreciation Expense
Accounting Fees

Total Expenses

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Ng

Program Management & Total Total
Services General Fundraising 2012 2011
3 730,864 b 333,188 $ 10,748 $ 1,074,800 $ 1,149,864
55,923 25,494 822 82,239 88,860
39,650 18,076 583 58,309 68,989
37,436 17,066 551 55,053 72,558
70,127 31,970 1,031 103,128 66,486
3,376,625 - - 3,376,625 4,065,707
2,844 - - 2,844 3,034
445 - - 445 862
5,841 2,663 86 8,590 14,282
3,040 1,386 | , 45 4471 4,306
6,773 3,088 99 9,960 19,868
3,601 1,641 53 5,295 5,578
4,787 2,182 71 7,040 7,456
105 48 2 155 518
10,456 4,767 154 15,377 11,942
102 46 2 150 300
2,934 1,338 43 4315 4,238
1,190 543 17 1,750 4,350
4,978 2,270 73 7,321 7,358
3,563 - - 3,563 5,782
3,300 - - 3,300 3,700
4,825 2,199 71 7,095 12,940
37,253 16,983 548 54,784 64,741
18,262 8,325 269 26,856 33,378
- - - - 5,093
3,584 1,634 53 5,271 5,456
9,088 4,143 136 13,367 13,168
78,558 - - 78,558 50,133
121,610 - - 121,610 98,391
9,235 - - 9,235 20,519
10,985 5,008 162 16,155 16,199
7,260 3,310 106 10,676 11,013
S 4,665,244 3 487,368 s 15,725 $ 5168337 $ 5,937,069

4-

tes to Financial Statements



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30,2012 and 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Grants Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
. Accrued Expenses
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in restricted cash ’
Acquisition of Fixed Assets

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Long-Term Debt
NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITES

NET INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED CASH

UNRESTRICTED CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

UNRESTRICTED CASH AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

In-kind contributions

2012 2011
$ 10,160 $ 205,158
16,155 16,199
352,485 (35,102)
892 (285)
(273,394) 19,702
1,950 3,201
108,248 208,873
(21,398) (28,040)
(2,128) (2,164)
(23,526) (30,204)
(4,157) (4,237)
(4,157) (4,237)
80,565 174,432
174,432 -
$ 254,997 $ 174,432
$ 4315 $ 4238
$ 127,083 $ 66,926

See Indepex;dent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements

-5-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIG:

d Sexual Violence

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (the Coalition) is a statewide

network of 14 independent member programs co

Coalition assists its member groups by providing tec
new programs, and by serving as a statewide clearing
state and federal contracts that provide funding for its

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been p
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for esta
for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASH
to the Coalition, and the Coalition’s conformity
disclosures are an integral part of the Coalition’s

Financial Statement Presentation

The Coalition is required to report information regarg
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, tem
restricted net assets. In addition, the Coalition is reqy
Coalition additionally maintains a classification of la
asset statements of activity, which is combined into t¢

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes :
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the
assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in wh

itted to ending domestic and sexual violence. The

ical assistance and training, support in developing
house and coordinating organization. It administers
member programs.

repared in conformity with Generally Accepted
profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
blishing accounting and financial reporting principles
3’s generally accepted accounting principles applicable

with Euch principles, are described below. These

cial statements.

litg its financial position and activities according to
iporarily restricted net assets, and permanently

iired to present a statement of cash flows. The

nd, building and equipment within its unrestricted net
ptal unrestricted net assets.

a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
> donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net
rich the contributions are recognized. All other donor-

restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets

depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a r¢
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Contributed Services

During the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the
community education, direct training and professiona
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, t
support depending on the existence or nature of any d

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time ang
Coalition, these amounts have not been recognized in
criterion for recognition of such volunteer effort is th;
purchased if not donated.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity

requires management to make estimates and assumpt
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ f

sstriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are

value of contributed services relating to printing,
| fees were $127,083 and $66,926, respectively.
emporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
fonor restrictions.

d time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the
the accompanying statement of activities because the
at services must be specialized skills, which would be

with generally accepted accounting principles
ions that affect certain reported amounts and
rom those estimates.




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Allocation of Expenses

The Coalition allocates expenses among program services, management and general, and fundraising based
on direct costs and other factors, including space utilization and time.

Property and Equipment

1t is the Coalition’s policy to capitalize property and equipment over $500 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are expensed.
Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are recorded
as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as unrestricted contributions
unless the donor as restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit
restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and
equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those
donated assets must be maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when the donated
or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies temporarily
restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. Property and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Building and Improvements 39 Years
Equipment » 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was $16,155
and $16,199, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Coalition is a not-for-profit corporation under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, is
exempt from federal income taxes, and is classified as gther than a private foundation. In addition, the
Coalition qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A).

Investments

The Coalition has adopted FASB ASC 958-320, “Accounting for Certain Investments Held by Not-for-
Profit Organizations.” Under FASB ASC 958-320, investments in marketable securities with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are reported at their fair values in the
statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets.
Investment income and gains restricted by a donor are reported as increase in unrestricted net assets if the
restrictions are met (either by passage of time or by use) in the reporting period in which the income and
gains are recognized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-
term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. There were po cash equivalents as of June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Under Title 1, New Hampshire, The State and Its Govermment, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:1-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobby or attempt to influence legislations, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities] The Coalition has established and maintains a
separate bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $453 and $1,929 at June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

-7-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE B - RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of funds received by the Organization, restricted as to use or time.
The restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011
respectively, the temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purpose:

2012 2011

Delta Prep #22 h - $ 12,509
NH Charitable Foundation Development 12,803 18,574
NH Charitable Foundation Open Doors Tratning - 5,000
Verizon #91 - 5,698
Verizon #92 245 5,000
Women Fund, SANE 5,000 -

Endowment for Health Child Trauma Fund 50.131 -

Total $ 68179 $ 46,781

NOTE € —LONG-TERM NOTES

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, long-term debt consists of the following:

2012 2011
Mortgage Note, Payable to Metrimack
County Savings Bank, Interest at 6.00%,
with Monthly Payments of $706 including
Principal and Interest, Maturity date is
October §, 2023. Secured by Real Property $ 69,610 § 73,767
Less Current Portion 4418 4.161
Total Long Term Debt 3 65,192 $ 69,606
Future scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as follows:
Years ending June 30:
2013 ' § 4418
2014 4,690
2015 4,980
2016 5,286
Thereafter _ 50,236
Total $ 69,610

NOTE D — LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a $50,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings Bank at
1.00% over Wall Street Journal prime rate. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were
no borrowings against the line as of June 30, 2012 and 2011.

NOTE E — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Coalition maintains cash balances in several accounts at a local bank. These accounts are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At June 30, 2012 and 2011 the Organization
had $73,126 and $-0- uninsured cash balances, respectively.




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE F — DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under

NOTE G — PENSION PLAN

short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

totaled $13,270 and $18,347, respectively.

NOTE H - TAX EXEMPT STATUS

The Coalition is a public charity exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501 (¢) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Coalition does not believe it has done anything during the past year that would
jeopardize its tax exempt status at either the state or Federal level. The Coalition reports its activities to the

IRS in an annual information return. These filings are

subject to review by the taxing authorities and the

federal income tax returns for 2011, 2010, and 2009 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for

three years after they were filed.

NOTE I - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Consideration has been given to determine if any events that occurred subsequent to the financial statement
date, June 30, 2012 and prior to the report date, September 21, 2012, of such significance to require

disclosure. It has been determined that no subsequent
period.

NOTE J - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

events matching this criterion occurred during this

Fair values of assets measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2012 and 2011 were:

Quoted Pricesin  Significant Other
Active Markets for Observable

Identical Assets Inputs

June 30,2012 Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 323,176 $ 323,176 $ -
Grants receivable 842592 - 842,592

Total $1.165,768 $§ 323176 $§ 842592
June 30, 2011
Cash and cash equivalents $ 221,213 $ 221213 $ -
Grants receivable 1,195.077 - 1,195,077

Total $1.416.290 $§ 221213 $1,195.077

Fair values for cash and cash equivalents are determined by reference to quoted market prices and other

relevant information generated by market transactions,
at the present value of expected future cash flows.

The fair value of the grants receivable is estimated




ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6A HILLY AVENUE
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 0330}

MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX#(603)226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

We have audited the financial statements of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

(a nonprofit organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 21, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL RFPOR

Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence’s internal control over financial reporting. Accorgdingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected jon a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be material wi esses, as defined above.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial staterent amounts.

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, the Board of
Directors, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Lol  Auioecidl, P
Rowley & Associates, P.C. -

Concord, New Hampshire
September 21, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT C

OULD HAVE A DIRECT AND

MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors
New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

COMPLIANCE

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domesti
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Suppleme
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Vio
30, 2012. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and §
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
responsibility of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Dom

responsibility is to express an opinion on the New Hampshire

compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with au
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Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-
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could have a direct and material effect on a major federal pro

basis, evidence about the New Hampshire Coalition Against ]
requirements and performing such other procedures as we cor

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our au
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’

In our opinion, the New Hampshire Coalition Against Dom
respects, with the requirements referred to above that could
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domcsticj
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with r
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing o
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal coatrol ovet
direct and material effect on a major federal program to deter
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report o
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing ax
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on th

Domestic and Sexual Violence’s internal control over complia

-11-

c and Sexual Violence’s compliance requirements

nt that could have a direct and material effect on each of
lence’s major federal programs for the year ended June
Sexual Violence major federal programs are identified in
z schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
ts applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
stic and Sexual Violence’s management. Our

> Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's

diting standards generally accepted in the United States
ined in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
types of compliance requirements referred to above that
gram occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
Domestic and Sexual Violence’s compliance with those
nsidered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
dit does not provide a legal determination on the New

s compliance with those requirements.

tic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material

e
ljave a direct and material effect on each of its major

and Sexual Violence is responsible for establishing and
quirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
ur audit, we considered the New Hampshire Coalition

r compliance with the requirements that could have a
mine the auditing procedures for the purpose of

n internal control over compliance in accordance with

n opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over

e effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against
ince.




A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists wh
does not allow management or employees, in the normal ¢
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of complian
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
contro! over compliance, such that there is a reasonable po
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This report is intended solely for the information and use o
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anyone other than these specified parties.

M ” M Fe
Rowley & Associates, P.C.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 21, 2012
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Summary of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30,2011

Summary of Auditor’s Results

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the New Hampshire

Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent

Auditor’s Report.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financ

ial statements of the New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence were disclosed during the audit.

4. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

5. The auditor’s report on compliance for major federal

award programs for the New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit finding that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133

are reported in the Schedule.

»

7. The programs tested as a major programs were:

Family Violence Prevention Service Act
Victims of Crime Act

Violence Against Women Act
AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program

93.671
16.575
16.588
94.006

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was $300,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and

Findings — Financial Statements Audit
None
Findings and Questions Costs — Major Federal Awar

No findings and/or questioned costs were identified duri

-13-

Sexual Violence qualified as a low-risk auditee.

d Programs Audit

ing the major federal award programs audit.




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal CFDA  Pass-Through Entity Federal
Program Title Number Identifying Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct Programs:
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 G-1001NHSDVC $ 35,510
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 G-110INHSDVC 191,119
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.592 19,150
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.592 81,991
Total Direct Programs 347,770
Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Health & Human Services:
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 611370-05 848,530
Sexual Violence Prevention 93.991 010-090-5190-093-0415 173,576
Total Pass-Through Programs 1,022,106
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 1,369,876
U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct Program - Violence Against Woman Act of 2000 16.588 13,010
Direct Program - Violence Against Woman Act of 2000 16.588 48,996
Direct Program - Violence Against Woman Act of 2000 16.588 154,611
Total Direct Programs ’ 216,617
Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:
Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 16.575 2011010 41,546
Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 16.575 2012010 1,147,525
VOCA, Training 16.575 2011010 10,229
VOCA, Training 16.575 2012010 2,537
VOCA, Addtl Training 16.575 2011010 5,265
VOCA, Technology & Foundation Project 16.575 2011010 6,526
VOCA, Technology & Foundation Project 16.575 2012010 70,343
VOCA, Technology Solutions 16.575 R2012VAI10A 2,300
BYRNE, American Reinvestment and Recovery Act 16.803 09JAROO3A 16,343
BYRNE, American Reinvestment and Recovery Act 16.803 09JARO012 44,522
Violence Against Woman Act (VAWA), Rural 2009 16.589 2009WRAX0028 50,096
VAWA, SASP 16.017 2009SASPO1 5,061
VAWA, SASP 16.017 2010SASPO1 126,610
VAWA, SASP 16.017 2012SASPOL 20,781
VAWA, Sexual Assault Examiner 16.588 2011W091 39,208
VAWA, Sexual Assault Examiner 16.588 2012W091 1,717
VAWA, DHHS Trainer 16.588 2010W090 21,871
VAWA, DHHS Trainer 16.588 2012W090 21,369
VAWA, Enhancing Sexual Assault Victim Services 16.588 2011W081B 44,137
VAWA, Enhancing Sexual Assault Victim Services 16.588 2012W081A 34,367
VAWA, Enhancing Sexual Assault Victim Services 16.588 2012W081C 3,000
VAWA, Enhancing Sexual Assault Victim Services 16.588 2012W081B 2,205
Total Pass-Through Programs 1,717,558
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 1,934,175
Corporation for National & Community Services;
Direct Program - AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 48,954
Direct Program - AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 374,903
TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERV]JCES 423,857
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDRAL AWARDS $ 3,727,908

-14-




New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic a+

Notes to schedule of Expenditures of Federal A
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note A - Basis of Presentation

d Sexual Violence
wards

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB

Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments d

nd Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore some

amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the

basic financial statements.

Note B — Subrecipients

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to

subrecipients as follows:

Program Title Federal CFDA #

Family Violence Prevention Services Act
Sexual Violence Prevention
Violence Against Women

Victims of Crime Act »

-15¢+

93.671
93.991
16.589
16.575

Amount Provided

$ 841,530
173,576
44,186
1,147,525
$2,200.817




P.O. Box 353

Concord, NH 03302-0353
Phone: (603)-224-8893
fax: (603)-228-6096

www.nhcadsv.org

Statewide Toll Free Hotlines
Domestic Violence:
1-866-644-3574

Sexual Assault:
1-800-277-5570

MEMBERS:

RESPONSE to Sexual &
Domestic Violence
Berlin

Colebrook

Lancaster

Turning Points Network
Claremont

Newport

Crisis Center of Central NH
Concord

Starting Point
Conway
Ossipee

Sexual Harassment and Rape
Prevention Program (SHARPP)
University of New Hampshire
Durham

Monadnock Center for
Violence Prevention
Keene

Jaffrey

Peterborough

New Beginnings
Laconia

WISE
Lebanon

The Support Center at Burch House
Littleton

YWCA Crisis Service
Manchester

Dermry

Bridges: Domestic and
Sexual Violence Support
Nashua

Milford

Voices Against Violence
Plymouth

A Safe Place
Portsmouth
Rochester
Salem

Sexual Assault Support Services
Portsmouth
Rochester

v ¢

VAMPS

cC Aundj\‘,

AINST

DOMESTIC

AND SEALAL VIO LENCE

NHCADSV| Vision and Mission

Vision

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
creates safe and just communities through advocacy, prevention and

empowerment of anyone
violence and stalking.

affected by sexual violence, domestic

Note: The language below will be used in grant applications and other
documents to provide further clarification of what the Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 14
independent community+based member programs, a Board of Directors
and a central staff working together to:

e Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;

e Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;

e Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities
for their responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and

stalking;

e Prevent violence jand abuse before they occur.

Approved April, 2011




P.O. Box 353

Concord, NH 03302-0353
Phone: (603)-224-8893
fax: (603)-228-6096

www.nhcadsv.org

Statewide Toll Free Hotlines
Domestic Violence:
1-866-644-3574

Sexual Assault:
1-800-277-5570

MEMBERS:

RESPONSE to Sexual &
Domestic Violence
Berlin

Colebrook

Lancaster

Turning Points Network
Claremont
Newport

Crisis Center of Central
New Hampshire
Concord

Starting Point
Conway
Ossipee

Sexual Harassment and Rape
Prevention Program (SHARPP)
University of New Hampsliire
Durham

Monadnock Center for
Violence Prevention
Keene

Jaffrey

New Beginnings
Laconia

WISE
Lebanon

The Support Center at Burch House
Littleton

YWCA Crisis Service
Manchester
Derry

Bridges: Domestic and
Sexual Violence Support
Nashua

Milford

Voices Against Violence
Plymouth

A Safe Place
Portsmouth
Rochester
Salem

Sexual Assault Support Services
Portsmouth
Rochester

AGAINST

o p”\unoj\‘,

DOMESTIC

AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

Current Board Terms

Board Member Election to | Re-election to Term
Board Board Expires
Christopherson, Robin 10/2010 2013
Chair Chair as of
11/1/12
Keller, Kathy 11/2005 11/2008 2014
Treasurer 11/2011
Harvey, Suzanne 10/2011 2014
Clerk
Reams, Dawn 11/2012 2015
Garon, Elizabeth 5/2009 52012 2015
Turco Beaudet, Jennifer 512012 2015
Indelicato, Suzette 8/2012 2015
Magoon, Linda 2/2013 2016

Bolded Print denotes Board Officers

Updated March 2013




Pamela English

Work contact: NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Viole
Telephone: 603-224-8893 Facsimile: 603-228-6096

Accomplishments

Nineteen years of experience in the areas of administr.
Effective problem solver and critical thinker.

Flawlessly manages multiple and simultaneous tasks
Responsible for clean audits with a low risk auditee pro
Managed conversion to Fund Accounting system.

Growth-inspiring leader; adept at conflict management

Professional Experience

Administrative Director — New Hampshire Coalition Ag
NH = 2006 — Present

Human Resources Management: supervise four emplo
increase productivity in the workplace.

Organizational Development.
Financial Management: budget and financial statemen
Facilities Management.

Manage information technology systems. National we
management.

Continue to assume duties of Business and Grants Ma

nce, PO Box 353, Concord, NH 03302

tion, finance and human resources.

Wrote grants and managed over twenty five federal state and private grants or contracts.

nd deadlines with strong attention to detail.
le.

=h

and team coaching.

jainst Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord,

yee positions. Specify and identify ways to

t preparation. Policy development.

binar development. Statewide database project

ager position.

Business and Grants Manager - New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,

Concord, NH = 1995 — 2006

. Maintained financial records, payroll and employee benefits.

. Managed state and federal funding programs

. Created financial reports and chart of accounts.
Administrative Assistant — New Hampshire Coalition
NH_ - 1993-1995

- Insured compliance with state and federal reporting re
. Maintained accurate financial records using full charge
Provided administrative support to three people.

Self Employed Child Care Provider — Concord, NH =

Legal Secretary, Concord, NH = 1985 - 1988

Daniel D. Crean, Esquire and Charles H. Morang, Esq
. Robert K. Mekeel, Esquire: Labor, Criminal, Worker's

ainst Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord,

uirements: 941, state UC, W-2 and 1099’s.
computerized bookkeeping system.

1988 — 1993

iire: Municipal and Business Law Practices
Compensation and General Law Practice



Computer Experience and Software Skills

SAGE MIP Fund Accounting; Microsoft Office 2010 — proficlent in Word, Excel, Outlook; working
knowledge of PowerPoint; ACCESS database management; business analytics.

Community Activities

2008-present  Northwood Congregational Church, council member; Chair of Fundraising Committee;
Sanctuary Preservation Committee; Christian Education Committee, Sunday School Teacher
2002-2009 Northwood Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years

1990-2002 Dewey/Kimball School PTA
1083-1984 President, Merrimack County Legal Secretaries Association

Skills

Working knowledge of federal and state grant compliance requirements; specific knowledge of Title 45 of
the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) particularly 45 CFR Parts 92 and 93; OMB Circular 2 CFR 225,
OMB Circular A-133 and Single Audit Act of 1984
Working knowledge of computer management/information technology
Experienced in NH employment law, regulations and rules
Presentation skills

Adept at conflict management

Positive problem solving

Change management

Education

Selected Accounting and Management Courses — NH Technical Institute, Concord, NH
Legal Secretarial Degree |l — Merritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR

Awards

Walter J. Dunfey Excellence in Nonprofit Management 2010, awarded to NH Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence




KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

Agency Name: NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence

Name of Bureau/Section:

State of New Hampshire Bureau of Homeless and

Housing Services

. BUDGETPERIOD: [July 1, 2013 - June 30,2014
Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel Annual Salary Of Key | Percentage of Salary . T otﬁgatﬂ?aiaij
Pamela English, Administrative Director $62,000 0.00% ; . ; $q;00
ooo%| _$é:oo
0.00%| $0.0C
0.00% 5000
0.00%| - $0.00
000% . $000
;“ OTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) | ‘  $0.00

—

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY 2015

Annual Salary Of Key

Administrative
Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel Personnel
Pamela English, Administrative Director $63,860 0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%|

0.00%|

0.00%|

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

and individuals directly involved in operating and managing the
etc.). These personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is p

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc),

program (project director, program manager,
aid from the contract. Provide their name, title,

annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from agreément.




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: State Grant-In-Aid Funds Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 |State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 |Contractor Address

New Hampshire Legal Assistance

117 North State Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
(603) 223-9750 05-95-42-423010-7928 June 30, 2015 $102,154.00

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10

Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator

State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9197

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12

e

Jbhn €.

Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
, o ")l b\ SY

NEC o by e 'D\reeJ—or-

1.13 Acknowle({gt.‘ment: State of N H , County of Meccimacle

1.12.

On '" Iﬂ , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
[Seal] | " ] G {
; 1.13.2  Name and Title of Notary or Justlce of
___ Brenda G. Tougean
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 | Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

", S Coon
\W W /’i(jo corto é?\ws& e

1.16 Approval W ‘H/Depa\l't’w Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:
1.17  Approval by the Attorney Genera) (Form, Substance and Execution)
= ;(/MAA —
) 25 AL 20,3
By: Ueinne 7. f{C che Xt{o -y On -
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executlve Council
By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for ail
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1/In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
appllicable copyright laws.

6.2|During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not|discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3|If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.H.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
it the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable

oration with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
pracurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11..CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the|performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the|N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
ices shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
clajmed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.

14.]1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
matntain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insprance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
ocqurrence; and

1411.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
praperty subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
142 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

143 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

N
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
thig Agreement.

22.SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: ({17
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Program

Exhibit A

State Grant In Aid Program
1. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

SCOPE OF SERVIH!

1.1. Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to comply with

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2. SERVICES:

the program narrative, budget detail and narrative,
operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation

and amendments thereto, for Services,
as approved by the Bureau of Homeless and

Housing Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, Department of Health and

Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State
The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future leg
Court or federal or state court orders may impact o

slative action by the New Hampshire General
n the Services described herein, the State

has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements for the funds provided under this Agreement so as to achieve

compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable
to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate
records shall be maintained by the Contractor to dacument actual funds received or denials of

funding from such public sources of funds.
The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annu

al report information data by service modality

describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services rendered, and staff

required to provide the service, as may be required

by the State. Monthly reports may be

required at the discretion of the State. Reports shall include, but are not limited to, details of
compliance with the following key program cutcomes:

1.4.1.
housing stability. J
At least 60% of households that receive thi

episode of homelessness within 12 months.
Seventy (70%) percent of households will b
maintain their housing.

14.2.

14.3.

70% of households that receive this prevention assistance will achieve immediate

prevention assistance will not experience an

e provided counsel and advice on how to best

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during thé term of this Agreement, it will provide

services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:
2.1.

22

CA/DHHS/100213

New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In
A:28 and 126-A:29 as well as He-M 314

Aid Program RSA 126-A:25, 126-A:27, 126-

Contractor shall use the New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In-Aid funds for:

& Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect noti
homelessness.

=

counseling, substance abuse counseling, assis

and staff salaries and benefits.

Operations Activities, including shelter operatig

and supplies.

Exhibit A
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with eviction notice, mortgage with
ce, and other activities to prevent

Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment

tance in accessing other community services,

nal costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servigces

State Grant In Aid Program
Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PREC

EDENT TO PAYMENT

State Grant In Aid Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of servi
Aid Program.

ces as detailed in Exhibit A — State Grant In

This contract is funded 100% by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY14 not to exceed $51,077.00
SFY15 not to exceed $51,077.00
Federal Funds: Not Applicable

1. PROGRESS REPORTS:

Semi-annual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which identify the status of the
Services performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining services prior to the Completion Date

and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the
month following the end of each six month period on for

PROJECT COSTS; PAYMENT OF PROJECT COSTS;
2.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in th
determined by the State to be eligible and allowabl

2.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general

ervices, shall be submitted by the 15th of the

ms supplied by the State.

REVIEW BY THE STATE

“Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
e performance of the Services, as

e for payment.

rovisions of this Agreement and in

consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this

Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the
for the specific time period specified above.

The Contractor shall submit documentation of expe
each monthly period or any other such schedule as
provided exceed the amounts specified above.
Review by the State, Disallowance of Costs: At any

23.

24.

Contractor, in the amount not to exceed and

nditures of Project Costs at the conclusion of
may be required. In no event shall the funds

time during the performance of the Services,

and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the

State may review all Project Costs incurred by the

Contractor and all payments made to date.

Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not determined to be

allowable or are determined to be in excess of actu
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the

al expenditures, and shall, by written notice

Contractor of any such disallowance. If the

State disallows costs for which payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.

LINE ITEM TRANSFERS:

No more than 10% of funds in each budget line can be

ransferred between line items as appears on

the budget page without the prior written authorization from the State. Any expenditures which
exceed the approved budgets shall be solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However,
such excess expenditures may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is
permissible by this Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing
the Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to incur
additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior written authorization

from the State.

Exhibit B
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Program

Exhibit B

State Grant In Aid Program Budget detail

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15:

EXPENSE ITEM State GIA Funds Match
Prevention/intervention $25,538.00 $25,538.00
Rent with eviction notice, mortgage with 0 0

foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect
notice, and other activities to prevent

homelessness
Essential Services $76,616.00 $76,616.00
Assistance in finding permanent housing, | 0 0

employment counseling, substance abuse
counseling, assistance in accessing other
community services and staff salaries and

benefits
Operations N/A N/A
Shelter operational costs such as rent, 0 0
utilities, insurance, supplies and taxes
TOTALS $102,154.00 $102,154.00
TOTAL GlA+Match $204,308.00
CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit 8 Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 2
Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

CA/DHHS/100213

Special Provisians

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this cantract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the ¢ontrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,

* including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement

are contingent upon continued appropriation or availabil

ty of funds, including any subsequent

changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or
executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of

funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services pr

ovided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in

whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable forjany payments hereunder in excess of
appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of

appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the
become available, if ever. The State shall have the righ
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Cont
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Proy
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction
Notification of Funding Approval, the State sha
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agret
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall no

accordance with this Contract and 24 CFR 841.40

Add the following to Paragraph 6.1:

6.1. In connection with the performance of the Se
statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contra
equal opportunity and housing laws, Section 101
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063,
Part 107.

Add the following to Paragraph 6.:

right to withhold payment until such funds

t to reduce, terminate or modify services
ractor notice of such reduction, termination or
funds from any other source or account into
isions, Account Number, or any other

1 by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Il provide the Contractor with the funds, in
ement, in the amount specified in the attached

t be increased but may be decreased in
0(b) and (c).

rvices, the Contractor shall comply with all
state, country, or municipal authorities which
ctor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
(9), P.L. 99-500, Title VI of the Civil Rights

15 implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR

6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:
6.4.1.

with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing

Program regulations, and the Applic

that the grant funds provided pursuanti[o this Contract shall be used in accordance

ion including the Fair Housing and Equal

Opportunity Certifications and the Appligant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the

Application;

that the grant funds shall not be used

funds used to assist homeless persons

the Application or were designated fo

applicable governmental entity during

Application;

that no more than five percent of the

expenses,

that, except as provided at 24 CFR Sy

not:

6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major reh;
on the National Register of H

6.4.2.

6.4.3.

6.4.4.

Exhibit C
Page 1 of 6

to replace State or local assistance program
during the calendar year preceding the date of
r such use through an official action of the
the calendar year preceding the date of the

grant funds may be used for administrative
bsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall

abilitation, or conversion of any building listed
istoric Places; located in an historic district;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

5. Add the following to Paragraph 7.:

7.4.

7.5.

6. Add the following to Paragraph 8.:

8.3.

8.4.

CA/DHHS/100213

immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State

Historic Preservation Officer;
6442
map by the Federal Emergency
6.4.4.3.
endangered or threatened spec
Interior's Fish and Wildlife Serv

conduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by

Management Agency;

conduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an

ies designated by the U.S. Department of the
ce or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s

National Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as

species; and
be inconsistent with HUD's en
with the State’s Coastal Zone M
that the Contractor shall make it know

6.4.4.4.

6.4.5.

available to all on a nondiscriminatofy basis.
wn the availability of services are unlikely to

Contractor intends to use to make kno
reach persons of any particular race, ¢
national origin who may qualify for su
additional procedures that will ensure
facility and services;

that the submission of applications for
and that the Confractor possesses lega

6.4.6.

vironmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or

anagement Plan;
n that use of the facilities and services is
Where the procedures that the

olor, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or
ch services, the Contractor must establish

that these persons are made aware of the

grants is authorized under State or local law

authority to carry out the grants activities in

accordance with applicable law and regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing

and Urban Development;.
that the Contractor shall comply with
requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a);

6.4.7.

6.4.8.
42 U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulation
Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601)
that the Contractor shall comply with
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 482

6.4.9.

the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity

that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,

s at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
and

the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint
1-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

It is understood and agreed by the parties heretp that in discharging its obligations under this
Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent,

consultant, officer, or elected or appointed officia
that receives Supportive Housing Grant amounts

of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State
who exercises or has exercised any functions

or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a

personal or financial interest or benefit from the
subcontract or agreement with respect thereto,

activity, or have an interest in any contract,

or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or

herself or those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for

one year thereafter.
The Contractor shall not employ, engage for sery

ices, award contracts or fund any contractors

or subcontractors during any period of their debqrment, suspension or placement in ineligibility

status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24,

The State may deobligate amounts for any acd
rehabilitation grant if the total costs of the acqu
are less than the approved grant.

The State may deobligate funds made avai
acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitat|

uisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
sition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation

able under this Contract if any proposed
on activities are not begun or completed in

accordance with the development schedule contained in the Application or within a reasonable

time thereafter.

Exhibit C
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

7.

CA/DHHS/100213

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

The Contractor shall repay the full amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or

moderate rehabilitation grant if it fails to use
homeless for a ten year period following th
Agreement.

he structure for supportive housing for the
initial occupancy with funding under this

For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless following the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduced by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the
date of initial occupancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor’s written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer
needed as transitional housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the
Project for the direct benefit of lower income| persons. In such event, for purposes of
determining the Contractor's repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

If the Project is taken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds
are available from the eminent domain or other proceeding.

Add the following to Paragraph 9.:

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

Between the effective date and a date five years
the Contractor's normal business hours, and as

after the Completion Date, at any time during
often as the State shall reasonably demand,

the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,

publication, translation, or for any other purpose
the Contractor to make available data that woul
Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third

Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
d violate any statute, other provisions of this
parties. The term “Contractor” includes all

persons, natural or fictional, who are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an

affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor i
this Agreement.
During the performance of the Project Activitie

n Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of

and for a period of five (5) years after the

Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the fallowing records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.
Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting a determination to be made | by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shali
include, without limitation, all ledgers, bgoks, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisitions for materials, inventorijes, valuations of in kind contributions, labor
time cards, payrolls and other records reguested or required by the State.

Contractor and Subcontractor Records: | The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contraclors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserve property management, project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to the project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is later.
Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year
retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or
the Comptroller General of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the
Contractor shall make available to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller
General, as requested, all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The

9.5.2.

9.5.3.

Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

8. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this con
following language:
10.1.

Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller General,
collectively or separately, to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, recards of personnel, data and other invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other information relating to all matters

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

covered in this Agreement.

The State may terminate the Agreement at any

ract, Termination, is amended by adding the

time for any reason, at the sole discretion of

the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its

option to terminate the Agreement.

in the event of early termination, the Contracior shall, within 15 days of notice of early

termination, develop and submit to the State

a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients

receiving services under the Agreement and esta
The Contractor shall fully cooperate with State a
to support the Transition Plan including, but not i

lishes a process to meet those needs.
d shall promptly provide detailed information
ited to, any information or data requested by

the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide

ongoing communication and revisions of the Tran
In the event that services under the Agreement
services under the Agreement are transitioned t
including contracted providers or the State, t
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transitior
The Contractor shall establish a method of notifyi
the transition. The Contractor shall include the pr
submitted to the State as described above.

sition Plan to the State as requested.
including but not limited to clients receiving
b having services delivered by another entity
he Contractor shall provide a process for
Plan.

ng clients and other affected individuals about
oposed communications in its Transition Plan

9. Add the following to Paragraph 14:

14.4. The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

10. Add the following to Paragraph 20:

20.1. DEVELOPMENT
20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for

the Project as described in the Application and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

20.1.2. The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total |cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION
20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will facilitate the provision of necessary supportive

services to the residents of the Project.

20.2.2. The Contractor shall assure that the Prpject will be operated in accordance with the
Project Sponsor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application.

20.2.3. The Contractor shali operate the Project as transitional housing for homeless persons
for a ten-year period following the initial pccupancy with grant funds provided pursuant

, to this Contract.

20.2.4. In the event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Contractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials U
Page 4 of 6 Date
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Exhibit C

20.3.

20.4.

20.2.5.

20.2.6.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

The Contractor shall assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in
accordance with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
residents to pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2)| 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or
(3) if the family is receiving payments forwelfare assistance from a public agency and
a part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated.
The Contractor shall conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services
required by the residents in the Project.
The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision|of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commitment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.
The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of the structure and the operation of the Project.

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

20.3.1.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.
The covenant running with the land, required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following initial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shal| be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.
The Contractor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,
for a Project receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
for a Project receiving an acquisition| advance, recorded immediately after the
recording of the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds is| leased from a religious organization, the
Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

2041

204.2.

20.4.3.

20.4.4.

204.5.

20.4.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to
all persons regardless of religion; and
the lease payments will not exceed the|fair market rent of the structure without the
rehabilitation; and
the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for
the provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and ,
unless the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the impragvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the palicies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR|841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor's financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and

Lai—

Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C

20.4.7. the Contractor shall keep any records |and make any reports that the State may
require. Estimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate
rehabilitation of the Project shall be |supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.

Exhibit C Contractor Initials

CA/DHHS/100213
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Exhibit C-1

es

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PI

1. Retroactive Payments — Individual Services
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Ag
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contract
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement and no paymen
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on whi
(except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) pri
eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments — Contractor Services
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Ag
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contract
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement.

3. Audit Requirement
The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set f
Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified Py
the funds received under this Agreement.
The following requirement shall apply if the Contractoris a §

ROVISIONS

reement or in any other document,

agreed by the parties hereto, that no

or for any services provided to any individual
s shall be made for expenses incurred by the
ch the individual applies for services or

or to a determination that the individual is

reement or in any other document,
agreed by the parties hereto, that no
or for any costs incurred for any purposes

orth in Section 1.2 of these General
ublic Accountant, of the Contractor, including

tate or Local Government: If the federal

funds received under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the

aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall

be performed in accordance with the

provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Single Audits of State and Local Governments.

4. Credits
All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, an
from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall

d other materials prepared during or resulting
include the following statement. “The

preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New

Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bur
funds provided in part or in whole by HUD.”

5. Insurance

eau of Homeless and Housing Services, with

. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and replaced with the following

subparagraph:
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims o
amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,
aggregate; and

Exhibit C-1
Page 1 of 1

CA/DHHS/100213

f bodily injury, death or property damage, in
000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 general

Contractor Initials

Date




NH Department of Health and
STANDARD EXHI

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prov
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s rep
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certificat

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDL

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - {
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implemer
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; «
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the N
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inferent
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Sectior
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contracte
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in

Page of

Human Services
BITD

WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

sions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
resentative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
on:

JALS

CONTRACTORS

nting Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
lay 25, 1990 Federal Reqister (pages 21681-
ze, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
1 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
ors) that is a State may elect to make one
lieu of certificates for each grant during the

federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificat
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards

e set out below is a material representation of
he grant. False certification or violation of the

certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 0330146505

(A)

The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlied substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition,;

(b} Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed u

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requireme

January 2009
Page 1 of 2

on employees for drug abuse violations

Contractor Initials: /)
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nts
Date:




N-H- Legal Ay stanee

(d)

(e)

U]

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in

(B)

connection with

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip a

Making it a requirement that each employee

of

Page

to be engaged in the performance of the grant

be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement req
employment under the grant, the employee

(1)
2) Notify the employer in writing of his or
statute occurring in the workplace

conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or
conviction. Employers of convicted employe
to every grant officer on whose grant activity
the Federal agency has designated a centra
shall include the identification number(s) of eg

Taking one of the following actions, within
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any empl

(1
termination, consistent with the requ
amended; or

Requiring such employee to participa
rehabilitation program approved for
health, law enforcement, or other app

@)

the specific grant.

wlll
Abide by the terms of the statement; and

uired by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
no later than five calendar days after such

calendar days after receiving notice under
otherwise receiving actual notice of such

es must provide notice, including position title,

the convicted employee was working, unless
| point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
ch affected grant;

30 calendar days of receiving notice under

oyee who is so convicted

Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

rements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

te satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
ropriate agency;

a drug-free workplace through implementation

ode) (list each location)

Check []if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

From:”///}o 1370 é/aa

/2015

(Contractor "Name)

IVha

(Period Covered by this Cértifica

€ T—bé(‘nLJf‘ ) (X‘e‘

flon)

’w_‘_)\’-p le?v!"’ —~

(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

Sliglie

(Contractor Representative Signature)

NH DHHS, Office of

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements

January 2009
Page 2 of 2
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: through

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be |paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disdose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification sha|| be subject
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Ml w oA Tohn £ Tobin. Iv., Edectn Directd ~

(Contractd™Representative Si gnature (Authorized Contractér Représentative Name & Title)

Vouw Mampsh; 0 lea. | Asgislan ee ’D/,‘/f\q\/lé

(Contractor Namey (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:_

Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying

January 2009 Date: :7 ( L ( 7)




The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provi
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters,
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of {
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit F —
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility M

January 2009
Page 1 of 3

Page of

NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

and {

sions agrees to comply with the provisions of

and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
urther agrees to have the Contractor's

he General Provisions execute the foliowing

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is

providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certificat
in denial of participation in this covered transact
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot p
explanation will be considered in connection wi
Services' (DHHS) determination whether to ent
the prospective primary participant to furnish a

The certification in this clause is a material rep
placed when DHHS determined to enter into thig
prospective primary participant knowingly rende
other remedies available to the Federal Govern
for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall prov
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is sub
participant learns that its certification was e
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

» oy

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary coy
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, h
and Coverage sections of the rules implementi
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by s
the proposed covered transaction be entered in
tier covered transaction with a person who is
voluntarily excluded from participation in this
DHHS.

5 transaction.

ion required below will not necessarily result
on. If necessary, the prospective participant
rovide the certification. The certification or
h the NH Department of Health and Human
er into this transaction. However, failure of

certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

resentation of fact upon which reliance was
If it is later determined that the
red an erroneous certification, in addition to
ment, DHHS may terminate this transaction

ide immediate written notice to the DHHS

mitted if at any time the prospective primary

rroneous when submitted or has become

suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
ered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
ave the meanings set out in the Definitions
ng Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

Libmitting this proposal (contract) that, should
to, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
covered transaction, unless authorized by

Contractor Initials; 7j\

—

e (Y

ptters




7.

10.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit F —
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters

January 2009
Page 2 of 3

The prospective primary participant further ag

Page of

rees by submitting this proposal that it will

include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered
modification, in all lower tier covered transaction
transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may
participant in a lower tier covered transaction th

Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without

s and in all solicitations for lower tier covered

rely upon a certification of a prospective
at it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or

involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the

eligibility of its principals. Each participant
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be cons
records in order to render in good faith the
knowledge and information of a participant is n

may, but is not required to, check the

trued to require establishment of a system of
certification required by this clause. The
ot required to exceed that which is normally

possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragr
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or vg

aph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
ower tier covered transaction with a person
luntarily excluded from participation in this

transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may

terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant certifies to th
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, prd
voluntarily excluded from covered transactio

have not within a three-year period precedi
or had a civil judgment rendered against
offense in connection with obtaining, att
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a co
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commis
falsification or destruction of records, ma

property;

are not presently indicted for otherwise cri
entity (Federal, State or local) with commi
paragraph (l)(b) of this certification; and

(b)

(©

have not within a three-year period precedi

(d)

1e best of its knowledge and belief, that it and

posed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
ns by any Federal department or agency;

ng this proposal (contract) been convicted of
them for commission of fraud or a criminal
empting to obtain, or performing a public
ntract under a public transaction; violation of
sion of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
king false statements, or receiving stolen

minally or civilly charged by a governmental
ssion of any of the offenses enumerated in

ng this application/proposal had one or more

public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal

(contract).

Contractor Initials: (lr?
Date: 7{(7 | ZO'X




LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Page of

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certtifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its

principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended

proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,

or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal

department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,

such prospective participant shall attach

an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Q(ﬂmﬂ W JA0hn E.

Tobin Ir. ,Edeculie Direcd~

{Contracto R7presentat|ve Signature) (Authorized Contractér Representatlve Name & Title)

New Nonpshi< Lec«/ Bs<sisiance

(Contractor Name)’ (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility M
January 2009
Page 3 of 3

atters
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Contractor Initials:

Date:



Page of

NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXH

BIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING

THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILIT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisi

IES ACT COMPLIANCE

isions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1.

i 1 he

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract)
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the

the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Tdbin ,Jr. € dece e Dirackn

(Contractor Wresen\tatlve Slgnature (Authorized

Now H“MK;»::—( L!Ca( Bssis3an

Contractor Representative Name & Title)

7//‘7//?

de__

(Contractor Name (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act

January 2009

”H[

Z/?

Contractor Initia

’7/9
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoki, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

G({&U%m J\Dhn Lt ﬂ)l) iaJr Clecuh e /){rt’cl?r\

(Contractgr epresentatlve Slgnature (Authorized Contractor Represeﬁtative Name & Title)

AQuy [Ml/vvf§}'m-e, u,(o\f Asssdan o ‘?/ /( Z

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initjals:_
Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke ~ ? :
January 2009 Date:__ ] G L ( 4




comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Account

Page of

NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

bility Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the

Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to busi
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

0))

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 1 of 6

ss associates. As defined herein, “Business

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the tean “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such
Federal Regulations.

erm in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meanjng as the term “designated record set” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meani
CFR Section 164.501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Techn

TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Re¢

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability 4
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Se
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term

and shall include a person who qualifies as a person
Section 164.501(g).

13

Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for P

as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR

ng as the term “health care operations™ in 45
ology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
overy and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

nd Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law

curity of Individually Identifiable Health

“individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
al representative in accordance with 45 CFR

rivacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States

Department of Health and Human Services.

Contractor Inmals

’?(

Date:

Z
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health

information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited

to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning
Section 164.501.

designee.

as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR

. “Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, 4

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means p
by a technology standard that renders protected hg
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and
developing organization that is accredited by the Ani

nd amendments thereto.

otected health information that is not secured
alth information unusable, unreasonable, or
s developed or endorsed by a standards
erican National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established

under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and ‘l 64, as amended

from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, mainta
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide t
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall ng
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintai
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Ru

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

n or transmit Protected Health Information
he services outlined under Exhibit A of the
nt, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
n or transmit PHI in any manner that would
e.

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

II. As required by law, pursuant to the term
1. For data aggregation purposes for the he

To the extent Business Associate is permitted und

s set forth in paragraph d. below; or
alth care operations of Covered Entity.

er the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third

party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable

assurances from the third party that such PHI wil
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such dis
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disc
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, W
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busing
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies

be held confidentially and used or further
for which it was disclosed to the third party;
y Business Associate, in accordance with the
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to

closure is reasonably necessary to provide
ose any PHI in response to a request for
ithout first notifying Covered Entity so that
disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
>ss Associate shall refrain from disclosing the

Contractor Initials;

Date;
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound

by additional restrictions over and above those useg

or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI

pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shalli be bound by such

additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

violation of such additional restrictions and

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,

any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with
13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sect
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec

Business Associate shall make available all of its
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI 1

Agreement, including any security incident

the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

ons of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
. 13401 and Sec.13404.

internal policies and procedures, books and
eceived from, or created or received by the

Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, incliiding the duty to return or destroy the PHI as

provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The

Covered Entity shall be considered a direct

third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s

intended business associates, who will be receiving

PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights

of enforcement and indemnification from such bupiness associates who shall be governed by

standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the
health information.

purpose of use and disclosure of protected

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a wriften request from Covered Entity, Business

Associate shall make available during normal bus

ness hours at its offices all records, books,

agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered

Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
with the terms of the Agreement.

determine Business Associate’s compliance

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrilten request from Covered Entity, Business

Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designg

ted Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as

directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR

Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the

Business Associate shall make such PHI availah
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Section 164.526.

le to Covered Entity for amendment and
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR

N
([
S

\«
Contractor Initials:___,

Date: ?[ \C(
\
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Business Associate shall document such disclosus
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity

Page of

es of PHI and information related to such
to respond to a request by an individual for

an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Assd

request from Covered Entity for a request for

ciate shall make available to Covered Entity

such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amen|
the Business Associate, the Business Associate sha
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity sha
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the i
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond t
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as sq

dment of, or accounting of PHI directly from

1 within two (2) business days forward such

| have the responsibility of responding to

dividual’s request to Covered Entity would

violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
0 the individual’s request as required by such

on as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business

Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by
created or received by the Business Associate in ¢
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. I
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed tg
continue to extend the protections of the Agreemg
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that mak
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If ¢
that the Business Associate destroy any or all P
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of

Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or

bnnection with the Agreement, and shall not
f return or destruction is not feasible, or the

in the Agreement, Business Associate shall

ent, to such PHI and limit further uses and

e the return or destruction infeasible, for so

Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
HI, the Business Associate shall certify to

any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of

Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the

extent that such change or limitation may affect Busi

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business As

ness Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

sociate of any changes in, or revocation of

permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by

Business Associate under this Agreement, pursua
Section 164.508.

nt to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed tq in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Assdciate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

o)

Contractor Init'kals:__

Date: _7 \\C{
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Page of

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agrgement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein jas Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide ap opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associa
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is nece

e agree to take such action as is necessary to
ssary for Covered Entity to comply with the

changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and

state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknow

ledges that it has no ownership rights with

respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity|

in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit

Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which

can be given effect without the invalid term or cond
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding

ition; to this end the terms and conditions of

the use and disclosure of PHI, return or

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the

termination of the Agreement.

Contractor Initials: "~

e

Date:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly exeduted this Exhibit 1.

MY D4~ S

New Uampsh: 2 l«d Bssisaac o

The State Agel;cy Name

o~

Name of the Contractor

Signatﬂre o({yu{h%)ﬁ;e\d Rep\‘csentz@

Qa/ . %7@”1

Sighatiire of Authorized Representative

S E - Tobu, I

Name of ’Authorlzed Represe

/451\@(;\1‘*’%&/ @«W S

Name of Authorized Represéntative

Eye citige Direcker—

Title of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

’7/?,//3

Date

VEL)
Noss

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
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Date

Contractor Initi

Date:




NH Department of Health and
STANDARD EXHI

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prq
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 21410 3_0

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fi
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $2
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subg

X o

YES

If the answer to #2 above is

If the answer to #2 above is YES, pleas

Human Services

BIT J

visions, I certify that the responses to the

o060 O

scal year, did your business or organization
n U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
5,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
rants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NQ, stop here

se answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business

or organization through periodic reports filed under section 1
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Int

NO

YES
If the answer to #3 above is Y

If the answer to #3 above is NO, pleas

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly comj
organization are as follows:

Name:
Name:
Name:
Name:

Name:

3(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
ernal Revenue Code of 19867

(ES, stop here
e answer the following:

pensated officers in your business or

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:
Contractor irrtials:
Date: ? ,\Q( f
Page # \ of Page #




NH Department of Health and
STANDARD EXHI

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL H

Human Services

BIT J

UNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFAT4

A) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000
report on data related to executive compensation and associ
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant m
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting r¢

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward an
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must rej
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number

Program source

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding

Location of the entity

8) Principle place of performance

9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

10) Total compensation and names of the top five execut

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arg
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already avs

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provi
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Execu
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identifie
Provisions execute the following Certification:

Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
ated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
pdifications result in a total award equal to or
zquirements, as of the date of the award.

d Executive Compensation Information), the
vort the following information for any
requirements:

for grants

action

ives if:

from the Federal government, and those
]
ilable through reporting to the SEC.

the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which

sions agrees to comply with the provisions of
. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
tive Compensation Information), and further
d in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply w

ith all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Agcountability a%y Act.
ﬁ( L Qrc( ;

A7 -
(Contracto épresentative Signature) (Authorized

hn £.Tol,.n ) Jr.’ ExPchle Directsr
Contractor Representative Name & Title)

s

MO w (Jan{)s'h.’—t Luoc. I‘ Ass . s¥en

(Contractor Name) (Date)

2019 J2ci2

(1 F=

Contractor initials: \\

Date: IS

Page # A (;f(Pgée #




State of Nefw Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby

certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE is a New Hampshire nonprofit

corporation formed April 20, 1971. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

set

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

my hand and cause to be affixed

the(Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
thig 5" day of June A.D. 2013

2 W

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE O

F VOTE

(Corporation withou

James D. kerouwa c

t Seal)

, do hereby certify that:

(Name of Clerk of the Corporation; cannot be contract si

1. 1am aduly elected Clerk of _AJ2uw Uanrps h.~ |

gnatory)
o¢ o Ass Sdanee

(Corpotation Name]

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly addg
the Corporation duly held on pllk
(Date)

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract witl
through its Department of Health and Human Services,

[{ ¢ al
RESOLVED: Thatthe EY€cu e Directo

h

services.

pted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the State of New Hampshire, acting
, for the provision of

(Title of Contract Signatory

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter in
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instry
or maodifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, de

I

3. The forgoing resoluti%ks ave not been amended or rev
the day of , 20_!3.
(Date Contract Signed)
4 JVha £ Tl)ém \J)’ is the duly electe

& e re e

(Name of Contract Signatory) (T

X

of the Corporation.

to the said contract with the State and to

ments, and any amendments, revisions,

sirablé or appropriate.

pked, and remain in full force and effect as of

d

e of Contract Signatory)

e —

v

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Myrr.m 4¢ &K

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

Japss D ke ruac

(Name of Clerk of the Corporation)

(NOTARY SEAL)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

(Signature of Clerk of the Corporation)

| 19 dayoffuftg,,zota

(Notary Public/Justice offhe Peacs)

Commission Expires: ?/35//‘/

July 1, 2005
Page 1 of 1



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL

Board of Direc

ANNUAL BOARD RE?$

L ASSISTANCE
tors

50LUTION

AUTHORIZING FUNDING /

APPLICATIONS

November 14, 2012

Be it resolved that the Executive Directo

Assistance (NHLA) and/or his designee is auth

from United Ways, the New Hampshire Bureau
New Hampshire Bar Foundation (IOLTA and ot
Justice, the New Hampshire Department of Jus
Department of Health and Human Services, the
Aging, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urt

Hampshire Charitable Foundation and affiliated

r of New Hampshire Legal

prized to seek and apply for funds
of Elderly and Adult Services, the
her), the U. S. Department of
tice, the New Hampshire

> United States Administration on
pan Development, the New

foundations and funds, the

Endowment for Health, the New Hampshire Legislature (for renewal and possible

expansion of NHLA'’s state appropriation), the N

Authority, local Community Development Office

New Hampshire Housing Finance

s, and is further authorized to

apply for other public and private grants, contracts, and awards, and donations,

for civil legal services to the poor, to be used fo
projects, and is further authorized to execute sy
accept such funds in the name of New Hampsh

This resolution shall remain in effect thra

Adopte

r general revenues and for special
Ich documents as necessary to
ire Legal Assistance.

ugh December 31, 2013.

2d by the Board of Directors

November 14, 2012
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ACORD
—

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILI

DATE (MM/DINYYYY)
7/2/2013

Y INSURANCE

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND (ﬂDNFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEN
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

certificate holder in fieu of such endorsement(s}.

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsemgnt. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

ONTACT prancas McEvoy

FIAI/Cross Insurance PHORE | . (603)669-3218 |m§‘¢). (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street AL | fmcevoy@crossagency . com
INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC B

Manchester NH 03101 nsurer A Hanover Ins Co.
INSURED msurerg:Citizens Ins Co of America 131534
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Ino. INSURER € :
117 M. State Street INSURER D ¢

INSURER E ;
Concord NH 03301 INSURER § ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:13-14 All lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN (ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

[ADDL|
fi TYPE OF INSURANCE I§SR| v POLICY NUMBER m | BN TS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
[ | [ DAMAGE TO RENTEQ
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 0 S 300,000
A | cLamssane OCCUR PHVS59625301 7/1/2013  [7/1/2014 | g0 Exp anyoneperson) | § 5,000
— PERSONAL S ADVINJURY |'s 1,000,000
| | GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 2,000,000
X | POLICY RO | 1 Loc $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY CO BINEDIFINGLE UMY s 1,000,000
A 1 ANY AUTO . BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALUI_.I_S\SNNEO . ﬁSTHSSDULED PHV959625301 7/1/2013 [/1/2014 BODILY INJURY (Per accidont) | §
5| WNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
| X | mreonvros [ X | A62 | e accetent s
$
| X | UMBRELLALIAB | X [ aecur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAINS.MADE AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
DED | | RevenTions PHV959625301 MA1/2013  [7/1/2014 s
V/ORKERS COMPENSATION V059624101 WG STATU- Oft-
AND EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY YIN X | (G IANS ER
wmor:alermmA&TﬁsamxscunveE NIA {3a.) NWH £1. EACH ACCIDENT 5 500,000
Mandatory n iy - CLuoE0? pll officers included [742/2013  11/2/2014 || pygeASE - EA EMPLOYER § 500,000
I dascribe under
%t’:mpnon OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY UMIT | $ 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS { VEHICLES {Atlach ACORD 101, Additlonal Remarks Schedule, If more space is required)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

DHHS, State of NH
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES 8E CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL. BE OELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

L4
Jill Charnley/Jsc /wut' & o

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INSO28 (201005 01

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Tha ACORD nama and lann ara ronicthrad marke nf ACORN
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=VACHON CLUKAY
& COMPANY PC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
608 Chestnut Street « Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

(603} 622-7070 » Fax: (603) 622-1452 » www.vachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial state

ents of New Hampshire Legal Assistance,

Inc., which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the

related statements of activities and cash flows for the yea
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fz
in accordance with accounting principles generally accep

s then ended, and the related notes to the

ir presentation of these financial statements

ed in the United States of America; this

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of financial statements that are free from ma
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these fin
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
America and the standards applicable to financial audits cor
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whe
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtai
disclosures in the financial statements.

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, w
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluat

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

The procedures se|
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the audito
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial stat

terial misstatement, whether due to fraud or

ancial statements based on our audits. We
generally accepted in the United States of
itained in Government Auditing Standards,
Those standards require that we plan and
ther the financial statements are free from

n audit evidence about the amounts and
lected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
of the financial statements, whether due to
r considers internal control relevant to the
ements in order to design audit procedures
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
e express no such opinion. An audit also
used and the reasonableness of significant
ng the overall presentation of the financial

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, In

d., as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and




the changes in its net assets and its cash flows thereof fo
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
whole. The schedules of functional expenses and schedule o
by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Aud
Profit Organizations are presented for purposes of additiona
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other recon
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedu
financial statements and certain additional procedures, i
information directly to the underlying accounting and ot
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and oth
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financid

Other Reporting Réquired by Government Auditing Standar

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards,
28, 2013, on our consideration of New Hampshire Legal Assi
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain pro
grant agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of tha
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standa
Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and

Dacko |

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 28,2013

r the years then ended in accordance with

of America.

an opinion on the financial statements as a

f expenditures of federal awards, as required

ts of States, Local Governments, and Non-
| analysis and is not a required part of the
of management and was derived from and

ds used to prepare the financial statements.
res applied in the audit of the consolidated
Ecluding comparing and reconciling such

er records used to prepare the financial

er additional procedures in accordance with

America. In our opinion, the information is
| statements as a whole.

ds

we have also issued our report dated March
stance, Inc.’s internal control over financial
visions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
the scope of our testing of internal control
it testing, and not to provide an opinion on
That report is an integral part of an audit
rds in considering New Hampshire Legal
compliance.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2012 and 2011

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Investments
Grants and contracts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Contributions receivable
Land, building and equipment (net)
Law library
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Deposits
Note payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Note payable ,
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes to financial statements

2012 2011
$ 855,736 $ 575,729
600,416 579,144
761,889 1,611,260
103,538 8,510
20,689 22,663
12,300 13,150
2,354,568 2,810,456
25,000
298,734 349,171
29,424 29,424
353,158 378,595
$ 2,707,726 $ 3,189,051
$ 66,255 $ 65407
205,331 192,111
64,979 88,463
66,121 58,762
11,000
413,686 404,743
78,000
78,000 -
491,686 404,743
1,053,656 1,395,530
1,162,384 1,388,778
2,216,040 2,784,308
$ 2,707,726 $ 3,189,051




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Statements of Activities
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA
Government Grants and Contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations
Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services
Case Revenue
Unrealized (loss) gain on investments
Investment income
Net assets released from restrictions
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES
Program services:
Domestic violence project
Housing justice project
Senior citizens' law project
Youth law project
Other civil legal services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Fund raising
Management and general
Total supporting services
TOTAL EXPENSES

(DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA
Government Grants and Contracts
United Ways
Contributions
Temporarily restricted net assets released from restrictions
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - January 1
NET ASSETS - December 31

See notes to financial statements

012 2011
$ 253,750 § 351,750
863,892 1,222,126
97,751 141,851
274,942 172,047
205,267 332,430
202,315 299,236
21,272 (6,600)
2,183 3,284
1,038,778 1,160,766
2,960,150 3,676,890
479,287 560,417
519,420 419,072
234,348 250,153
138,573 96,079
1,208,385 1,619,715
2,580,013 2,945,436
126,079 110,147
595,932 700,988
722,011 811,135
3,302,024 3,756,571
(341,874) (79,681)
181,250 251,250
468,231 1,050,000
33,367 73,497
129,536 14,031
(1,038,778)  (1,160,766)
(226,394) 228,012
(568,268) 148,331
2,784,308 2,635,977

$ 2,216,040

$ 2,784,308




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Decrease (increase) in market value of investments

Legal settlement promissory note
Net effect of changes in:

Receivables

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Deposits

Security deposits

Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Redemption of investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on note payable
Net cash (used) by financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH - January 1
CASH - December 31

See notes to financial statements

2012 011
$ (568,268) $ 148331
52,030 59,805
(21,272) 6,600
91,000
729,343 (267,009)
1,974 49,599
848 17,212
13,220 (36,183)
(23,484) 73,955 -
7,359 (17,901)
850 2,635
283,600 37,044
(1,593) :
100,000
(1,593) 100,000
(2,000)
(2,000 -
280,007 137,044
575,729 438,685
$ 855736 $ 575729




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN

Nature of Activities

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (NHLA) was orgad
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. NHLA is a non
providing legal assistance to persons financially unable to
Hampshire.

The accounting policies of New Hampshire Legal Assista
generally accepted in the United States of America as applic
hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounti

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance w
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accoun
required to report information regarding its financial position
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
based upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrict

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual ba
Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promis
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor
net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in
donor restricted support is reported as an increase in tempo

depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction ¢

reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other ca

less.

Investments

Investments, which consist principally of money market a
December 31, 2012 and 2011. Unrealized gains and losses on

of activities.

G POLICIES

nized as a nonprofit entity under Section
profit entity organized for the purpose of

afford legal assistance in the State of New

]

ce, Inc. conform to accounting principles
ble to nonprofit entities except as indicated
ng policies.

th the reporting pronouncements pertaining
ting Standards Codification. The Entity is
and activities according to three classes of
sets, and permanently restricted net assets,
ons.

K
&

is of accounting.

e to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
are reported as an increase in unrestricted
which the support is recognized. All other
rarily or permanently restricted net assets
xpires, temporarily restricted net assets are

sh accounts with a maturity of 90 days or

ccounts, are carried at market value at
investments are reflected in the statement




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional pledges are recorded as made. These amount
estimated fair value. Conditional pledges are recognized only
are substantially met and the pledges become unconditional.
follows:

s are recorded at the present value of the
when the conditions on which they depend
Contributions receivables are collectible as

Total 0-1 Years 1-5 Years > 5 Years
Contribution receivables $ 128,538 $ 103,538 3 20,000 § 5,000

Land, Building and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost for purchased itg
items and is summarized as follows:

Land
Building
Equipment

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method o
equipment and ten to forty year lives for the building and impr

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when
in excess of two years are capitalized.

Depreciation expense was $52,030 and $59,805 for December

Law Library

NHLA capitalized the original cost of materials in its lib

approximate original cost; consequently, depreciation expense
are expensed as incurred.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debt
debts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 because the Entity b

ends are fully collectible.
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with acc
United States of America requires management to make est

ms and at estimated fair value for donated

2012 2011
$ 10,000 $ 10,000
406,797 405,204
275,686 275,686
692,483 690,890
(393,749) (341,719)
$ 298734 § 349,171

ver estimated three to ten year lives for
ovements.

incurred and betterments with a useful life

31,2012 and 2011, respectively.

rary and estimates the salvage value to
is not recorded. Updates to the law library

s. No provision has been recorded for bad
clieves that outstanding receivables at year

unting principles generally accepted in the
mates and assumptions that affect certain

q
i




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED
For the Years Ended December 31,2012 and 2011

reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting perj

estimates.
Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activ

)

od. Actual results could differ from those

ities have been summarized on a functional

basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Fund Raising Activities

Fund raising expenses represent the allocated cost of pre
appreciation by the staff of New Hampshire Legal Assistance

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts pa)
are carried in the financial statements at amounts which ap
short-term nature of the transactions. The fair values determ

which for certain accounts may differ significantly from
immediate liquidation.

NOTE 2--INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

paring contribution appeals and letters of
Inc. (see Note 13).

yable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
proximate fair value due to the inherently
ined for financial instruments are estimates,
the amounts that could be realized upon

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements, whicli establishes a framework for measuring fair
value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measureme

inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair val

nt) and the lowest priority to unobservable
te hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in ac

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) ter

substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unob
measurement.

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
Inputs that are derived principally from or co

ve markets;

T

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

for the asset or liability;
rroborated by observable market data by

m, the Level 2 input must be observable for

servable and significant to the fair value




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair valu¢g measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing
price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
Cash or cash equivalent money market funds: Valued at acquisition cost.
Certificates of deposit: Valued using a market value pricing model.

Common stocks, unit investment equities, and fixed income securities: Valued at the closing price reported
on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity’s assets at fair value:

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2012

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash Management Funds $ 596,639 $ 596,639
Corporate Trusts 3,777 3,777
Total assets at fair value $ 600,416 $ - $ - $ 600,416

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash Management Funds $ 334,733 $ 334,733
Corporate Mortgage/Asset Backed Securities 9,992 9,992
Mutual Funds 230,710 230,710
Corporate Trusts 3,709 3,709
Total assets at fair value $ 579,144 $ - $ - $ 579,144

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Entity’s investments as of December 31, 2012 and 201] are stated at fair value. Shares of the
separate investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent the net value of shares
held by the Entity at year-end.

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date |basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Investments consist of equity and debt securities, certificates of deposit, and money market investments
which are carried at market value (adjusted annually). Realized and unrealized gains and losses are




- NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

reflected in the statement of activities. Assets held in the investment account were as follows at
December 31,2012 and 2011:

Market Market
Value Value
2012 2011
Cash management funds/certificates of deposit $ 596,639 $ 334,733
Fixed income securities 9,992
Mutual funds 230,710
Unit investment equities 3,777 3,709

$ 600416 $. 579,144

NOTE 3--GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts-receivab]e, by funding category, consist|of the following at December 31, 2012 and
2011:

" 2012 T o201
‘Government Grants and Contracts $ 509,397 $ 1,235,351
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA 219,000 301,500
United Way 33,492 74,409

$ 761,889 $ 1,611,260

NOTE 4--NOTE PAYABLE

Notes payable at December 31, 2012 consist of the following:

2012
Promissory note payable, due July 2020 with
monthly payments of $1,000. $ 89,000

This note payable is a result of a legal settlement agreement. The Entity will make monthly payments of
$1,000, with no interest, through July 2020. Also as part of the settlement agreement, the other company
will be making $5,000 payments beginning April 30, 2013 over 6 years totaling $30,000 to the Campaign
for Legal Services.

W

Scheduled maturities of notes payable for the next five years ar

Year Ended
December 31 Amount
2013 $ 11,000
2014 12,000
2015 12,000
2016 12,000
2017 12,000

10




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEI
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

)

Line of Credit

NHLA has a revolving line of credit with its primary bank
2011 the balance was $0.

NOTE 5--VACATION LEAVE

Accumulated earmmed vacation leave at December 31, 20
respectively. Earned vacation time is contingent upon employ
out in cash, except for the termination of employees.

NOTE 6--PENSION PLAN

NHLA operates a 401(k) retirement plan and under this plan’
of all employees’ salaries to the plan. NHLA has discretio
contribution, and in 2012 and 2011, NHLA’s discretionar
salaries. Contributions totaled $95,826 and $97,914, in 2012
make additional voluntary tax-deferred contributions up to the

NOTE 7--TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets represent contributions for ¢
and 2011 whose use has been limited by the donors as to
follows:

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire - Foreclosure Settlement
United Way

Contributions

NOTE 8--LEASE COMMITMENTS

)

for $500,000. At December 31, 2012 and

2 and 2011 was $99,153 and $110,113,

ees taking vacation and is not generally paid

5 “safe harbor” rules, NHLA contributes 3%
n under the plan to make a higher level of
y contribution was 2% of all employees’
and 2011, respectively. Employees can also
limits provided by the law.

ivil legal services as of December 31, 2012
urpose and future time periods and are as

2012 2011
$ 181250 $§ 251,250

350,000 1,050,000

468,231

33,367 73,497

129,536 14,031
$1,162,384  $ 1,388,778

NHLA leases its current Manchester, New Hampshire office building under an agreement that

commenced October 1, 2009 and ends September 30, 2014.
office under an agreement that commenced February 20, 2008
been extended on a month to month basis through August 201

INHLA leases its Concord, New Hampshire
and ends February 19, 2013. This lease has
3. In all of these leases there is a provision

that would allow NHLA to terminate the lease before the end of the term in the event of a funding
reduction. Rental expense for the leases was $170,466 and $221,880 for the years ended December 31,

2012 and 2011, respectively.

The following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum payments for operating leases:

11




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEI
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Year Ended
December 31
2013
2014

NOTE 9--INCOME TAXES

NHLA is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 5
also exempt from New Hampshire income taxes and, there
State income taxes. In addition, NHLA has been determined
"Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) prescribe
recognize, measure and disclose in its financial statements ta
on NHLA’s tax return that are reflected in measuring current
for interim or annual periods. Differences between tax pq
recognized in the financial statements will generally result i
payable, or a reduction in a deferred tax asset or an increas
have any unrecognized tax benefits which would be material
2011, no new additional unrecognized tax benefits were ide
years ending December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are open for

NOTE 10-CASE REVENUE

NHLA receives a regular stream of case revenue from fees
These fee awards must be approved by the Social Security
From time to time NHLA also receives larger attorney fee
action fee awards are episodic and it is not possible to predic

will be received. Rather than spending these entire awards in
them over a period of years to avoid wide fluctuations in staff

NOTE 11--ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Annual Lease
Commitments
$ 57,403

30,528

01(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is
fore, has made no provision for Federal or

by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a
the Code.

s rules regarding how the entity should

x positions that were taken or will be taken
or deferred income tax assets and liabilities
»sitions taken in a tax return and amounts
n an increase in a liability for income taxes

etLin a deferred tax liability. NHLA does not

the financial statements. During 2012 and
ntified. As of December 31, 2012, the tax
possible tax examination.

n Social Security and SSI disability cases.
IAdministration Administrative Law Judge.
awards in class action cases. These class
in advance their amounts or the dates they
the year they are received, NHLA allocates
size.

1

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, approximately 24% and 33% of total support and

revenue was derived from an appropriation from the State of

State appropriation would result in a decrease in services pro

could be obtained.

NOTE 12--SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CRE

NHLA maintains its cash balances in one financial institution

balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpo
year ended December 31, 2011, the Entity entered into a co

sweep funds into a repurchase agreement. These funds are ca

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 the amount of funds col
$254,819, respectively. At December 31, 2012, NHLA’s unins

12

New Hampshire. The discontinuation of the
vided by NHLA, until alternative revenues

1

DIT RISK

located in Bedford, New Hampshire. The
rzEtion up to a total of $250,000. During the
lateralization agreement with the bank to

llateralized by securities held by the bank.
ateralized by the bank was $67,701 and
ured cash balance was $475,301.




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEI
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 13--CAMPAIGN FOR LEGAL SERVICES

In June 2005, NHLA assumed administration of the Campa
the New Hampshire Bar Foundation. The Campaign is a joi
lawyers and law firms on behalf of NHLA, the Legal Adv
Program of the New Hampshire Bar Entity, all not-for-profit
income people. Revenues and expenses of these activities I
and made and as fund raising expenses in these financial state

NOTE 14--CONTINGENCIES

)

gn for Legal Services (the Campaign) from
nt fundraising effort seeking donations from
ice and Referral Center, and the Pro Bono
entities providing civil legal services to low
ave been reported as contributions received
ments.

NHLA receives funds under contracts from State and Federa)l sources, which require that NHLA use the

funds within certain periods and for purposes specified by g

should be found not to have been made in compliance with
required to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for these contingencies beca
determined or assessed by government audits as of December

NOTE 15-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 2

statements were available to be issued.

13

overning laws and regulations. If expenses
the laws and regulations, NHLA might be

use specific amounts, if any, have not been

31,2012 and 2011.

8, 2013, which is the date the financial
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Federal
Federal Granting Agency/Grant Program/ Grant Number/ Catalogue
Recipient State Agency/Grant Program/State Grant Number Number Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Pass Through Payments from the Cities of Portsmouth and
Nashua, New Hampshire
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218
Portsmouth $ 2,298
Nashua 3,062
5,360
Fair Housing Initiatives Program 14.408
#FH700G10091 247,734
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 253,094
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Office of Justice Programs
Legal Assistance for Victims 16.524
#2011-WL-AX-0010 __ 271,158
Congressionally Recommended Awards 16.753
#2009-D1-BX-0102 55,773
Total Department of Justice 326,931
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire Department
of Elderly and Adult Services
Special Programs for the Aging - Title I1I, Part B - Grants
for Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044
#010-048-7872-540 FY 12 85,641
Total Department of Health and Human Services 85,641
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 665,666

See notes to schedule of expenditizres of federal awards
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

December 31, 2012

NOTE 1--GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal
financial assistance programs of the New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. The New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the Entity's financial statements. All federal

financial assistance passed through other governmental agenc

NOTE 2--BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

es is included in this schedule.

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of

accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the Entity’s finang
NOTE 3--RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEME]

The recognition of expenditures of federal awards has been 1
as government grants and contracts.

16

ial statements.
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eported in the Entity’s financial statements




CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

>
-l
608 Chestnut Street » Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

X & COMPANY PC (603) 622-7070 » Fax: (603) 622-1452 + www.vachonclukay.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
-REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the Unite
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (a nonprofit entity) which g
as of December 31, 2012, and the related statements of activit
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have

2013.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial
Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over financial report
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressin

d States, the financial statements of New
omprise the statements of financial position
ies, and cash flows, for the year then ended,
issued our report thereon dated March 28,

statements, we considered New Hampshire
ing (internal control) to determine the audit
purpose of expressing our opinions on the
y an opinion on the effectiveness of New

Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s intefnal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performjng their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough tp merit attention by those charged with

governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencigs in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

17




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whg
Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatemen
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant ag
have a direct and material effect on the determination o
providing an opinion on compliance with those provision
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The res

noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reportg

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the s

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to prov
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in cong

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable

cther the New Hampshire Legal Assistance,
t, we performed tests of its compliance with
ireements, noncompliance with which could
f financial statement amounts. However,
5 was not an objective of our audit and,
ults of our tests disclosed no instances of
d under Government Auditing Standards.

scope of our testing of internal control and
de an opinion on the effectiveness of the
an integral part of an audit performed in
idering the entity’s internal control and
for any other purpose.

Oudone C%& Conpry 12

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 28, 2013
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' iVACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

608 Chestnut Street » Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

. & COMPANY PC (603)622-7070 + Fax: (603) 622-1452 + www.vachonclukay.com

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Legal Assistance, [nc.’s (a nonprofit entity) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB (ircular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s major federal
program for the year ended December 31, 2012. New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s major federal
program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in agcordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller| General of the United States; and OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards
and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance [requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program ogccurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necesgary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide| a legal determination of New Hampshire
Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance.

19




Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Legal Assistance, In
types of compliance requirements referred to above that cq

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of New Hampshire Legal Assistance
maintaining effective internal control over compliance w
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of

uld have a direct and material effect on its
major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2012.

. complied, in all material respects, with the

t, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
ith the types of compliance requirements
compliance, we considered New Hampshire

Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a

direct and material effect on each major federal program to

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressi

federal program and to test and report on internal control
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opi
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinic
Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exis
over compliance does not allow management or employees
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, ng
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A m
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and cq
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficie
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance rg
severe than a material weakness in internal control over c
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over complianc

the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to iden

compliance that might be material weaknesses or significa
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we cons
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over co

our testing of internal control over compliance and the results

i

determine the auditing procedures that are
g an opinion on compliance for each major
pver compliance in accordance with OMB
nion on the effectiveness of internal control
n on the effectiveness of New Hampshire

ts when the design or operation of a control
in the normal course of performing their
ncompliance with a type of compliance
terial weakness in internal control over
nternal control over compliance, such that
with a type of compliance requirement of a
prrected, on a timely basis. A significant
ncy, or a combination of deficiencies, in
quirement of a federal program that is less
bmpliance, yet important enough to merit

e was for the limited purpose described in
tify all deficiencies in internal control over
t deficiencies. We did not identify any
ider to be material weaknesses. However,

mpliance is solely to describe the scope of
bf that testing based on the requirements of

OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable fpr any other purpose.

U cm@é %ﬂ:
Manchester, New Hampshire

March 238, 2013
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New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Qug
Year Ended December !

Section I--Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
Circular A-133, Section .510(a)?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

14.408

rstioned Costs
31,2012

unqualified

yes X _no
yes X ___ none reported
yes X _no

yes X no

yes X none reported

unqualified

yes X no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Fair Houjsing Initiatives Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B program:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

21

$_ 300,000 .

X yes no




Section II--Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section ITI--Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under OMB Circular A-133 .510(a).
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ELLIOTT E

ERRY

EDUCATION:

University of Michigan, 1967-1971
B.A. Far Eastern Studies, Chinese Language and Lite

. J. D., Boston College Law School, 1975

EMPLOYMENT:

September, 1975-Present: Attorney, New Hampshir

Housing specialist for statewide legal services progr
areas: private landlord/tenant; conventional publ
housing; FmMHA § 502 and 515 housing; manufacty
development block grants; housing finance, and hous

| have advocated on housing issues in diverse forur
legislative drafting and lobbying, block grant advocdg
and community education.

LITIGATION:

1. Britton v. Town of Chester

Lead counsel in both three-week
exclusionary zoning by a developing municipality |
Supreme Court accepted plaintiff's position that

essential element of the general welfare and that m

rature

e Legal Assistance.

am with substantial experience in the following
¢ housing; Section 8 housing; Section 236
red housing; zoning; rent controls; community
5ing development.

ms: impact litigation, individual service cases,
cy, training and supervision, program support,

trial and appeal in successful challenge to
n metropolitan Manchester. New Hampshire
housing for all socio-economic classes is an
unicipal zoning ordinances must afford realistic

opportunities for development of housing for indiggnous low-moderate income families and for a

proportionate share of the regional need for such hoy

2. Soares, et al. v. Town of Atkins
This was an attack on exclusionary
After a 4-week trial, the Rockingham County Super
Mt. Laurel "fair share" principles. The Town
"inclusionary zoning ordinances."” Town's appeal dis

3.

Filed December 13, 1982. Action

Administration to provide financing for the purchas

1974 amendment to Housing Act.

legislation and regulations have been promulgated
credits for manufactured housing.

Eastman v. Block - (U.S. District (

Over the col

sing.

son - (N.H. Supreme Court)

zoning based on the "Mt. Laurel Doctrine.”
or Court issued a 107-page decision adopting
amended its ordinances and included some
missed as moot due to amendment.

Court).

challenging the refusal of the Farmers Home
e of manufactured housing as mandated by a
rse of the litigation, Congress amended the
granting Section 502 mortgages and interest




4.

Suit against private owner of subsi
based Section 8 subsidies and discrimination again
also a defendant for failure to enforce full utilizatig
provided agreement from private developer to utiliz
against certificate holders.

5. Simpson v. Pierce - (U.S. District
Action to enjoin rent increase for
conventional public housing based on OBRA amend
plaintiffs sought an order against the state welfare g
welfare checks to cover the rent increase. Final
recipients would not exceed the shelter component g

6. South End Tenants Association

Redevelopment Authority - (U.S

Action to enjoin local housing authqg

new construction contract (thus dispossessing 48 |

the ten-year term.
displaced tenants.

7. Girard v. Town of Allenstown -

Authored the only municipal rent cor

intervenors in defense of the ordinance. Town

meeting. Supreme Court ruled that town did not h4

state enabling legislation.

8. Luksa v. Harris - (U.S. District Cou

Action to enjoin HUD from charging

Scruton v. HUD - (U.S. District Ct}).
dized housing for under utilization of project-
st voucher and certificate holders.
bn requirements of HAP contract.
e all Section 8's and to prohibit discrimination

ments to U.S. Housing Act.

—

HUD was
Settlement

Court).

welfare recipients residing in Section 8 and
In the alternative,
epartment directing them to increase plaintiffs'

stipulation filed ensuring that rents for AFDC

f their AFDC grant.

v. Laconia Housing and

District Court).
rity and HUD from terminating a Section 236

arge tenant families) prior to the expiration of
Consent decree providing Section 8 Existing Housing certificates for all

[121 N.H. 268 (1981)].

trol ever enacted in N.H. Represented tenant-
efused to defend ordinance passed at town
ve power to enact rent controls in absence of

re).
AFDC recipients who reside in public housing

the amount of the maximum shelter allowance given by state welfare to AFDC recipients pursuant

to "Brooke lil," 42 U.S.C. 8§ 1437 and 24 C.F.R.

& 860.404. HUD agreed to accept $110 per

month per unit rather than the $155 maximum shelter allowance paid by the N.H. Division of

Welfare. This provided AFDC families in public ho

using the same per unit HUD subsidy as was

provided to the average non-AFDC public housing temant household.

9. Dussault v. Hills - (U.S. District Cq
Preliminary injunction entered agait
operating subsidy on behalf of tenants in Nashua.
injunction was vacated and plaintiffs were subsumed

Hills.

710. Kologiski v. Hills - (U.S. District C
Plaintiffs, tenants in 221(d)(3) deyv

Preliminary agreement. Final case settled with prom

BLOCK GRANT ADVOCACY:

1. Souhegan Valley Manufactured
Wrote a block grant application (smal
of mobile home owners renting lots in park which
Office of State Planning made the maximum single

tenants to leverage the financing necessary to purch

was being closed by a new owner.
purpose grant of $350,000 which enabled the
ase the park.

urt). May, 1977.

nst HUD ordering payment of Section 236

After several months of payment preliminary
in nationwide class certified in Underwood v.

hurt).
elopment sued to enjoin arbitrary eviction.
ulgation of 24 C.F.R. 8 450 by HUD.

Housing Cooperative
cities) for the Town of Milford, N.H. on behalf
The N.H.



2. LISTEN v. City of Lebanon

Administrative complaint against 1

Block Grant (Entitlement Program) filed on behalf o
failure to include programs which benefit low-inco
needs of homeowners, its failure to comply with H
citizen participation. Complaint caused a shift if
acceptable to community plaintiffs.
3. Manchester Emergency Housing
Co-founder of housing coalition f
Manchester for battered women and other homeles
$85,000 CDBG grant for purchase and rehabilitation

LEGISLATION:

1. "Affordable Housing Fund" (1988). \
"Affordable Housing Fund" (1988), state's first state
loans for community-based housing initiatives.

2. Wrote and lobbied statute providing p
self-help, and providing for substantial damages.

3. Wrote, testified, and successfully lob
eviction bill" in 1985.

4,
months notice. Tenants have an exclusive right to p

5.
for rent withholding.

6. Co-authored retaliatory eviction amen
organizing and rent withholding.

7.

a receiver in certain cases.
OTHER ACTIVITIES:

1. N. H. Community Loan Fund, Inc.

2. Chairman, 1987-present, Manchester
of state's largest city.

3.
Founder and initial president of non-profit community
state's largest municipality.

Co-authored, negotiated, lobbied tena
Tenants have nine months notice; when they are eld

Co-authored, testified in both House 3

Authored bill providing tenants in mob
superior court for injunctive relief to remedy health arn

Cq
first non-profit loan funds for community-based housging development.
cooperatives and other community based non-prof
below-market rate loans from religious and other char

078 application for Community Development
f community organization contesting the city's
me families, its over-emphasis on the housing
AP proportionality requirments, and inadequate
1 over twenty percent of funds, which was

J
ormed to create an emergency shelter in
5 persons. Wrote and successfully lobbied for
of the shelter.

Vrote and lobbied statute establishing
-funded program for grants and low-interest

ro se injunctive relief for victims of landiord

bied New Hampshire's statewide "good cause

nt protection from condominium conversion.
erly or disabled, in which case they get 18
irchase their unit for 60 days.

nd Senate hearings, lobbied. Authorization

dments to include protection for tenant

ile home parks with opportunity to petition
d safety problems, and for the appointment of

-founder and president of one of the nation's
We make loans to housing
t housing projects and are capitalized with
itable organizations and individuals.

Housing Council, created by legislative body

President, Manchester Area Housing Trust, 1991-present.

based housing development organization in




SUMMARY

Skilled paralegal with broad-based experie
handle high volume caseload effectively an
legal research and writing. Excellent comm
and administrative skills. Exceptionally detai

PROFESSIONAL EXF

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE; Manchester, NH

PARALEGAL

Provide support to staff attorneys and direct legal servi
the areas of housing, bankruptcy, local welfare, and puE
providing counsel and advice to and extended representa
local welfare and public benefit matters; extensive prepd
and authorities, discovery requests and responses thereta
records, case chronologies, and the like. Attend deposit
oral argument notebooks, prepare exhibits for trial, draf{
presentations about landlord and tenant law, local welfat
and elderly service providers and the public.

ORR & RENO, PA, Concord, New Hampshire
PARALEGAL

Legal and factual research to support Litigation Departn
litigators, directly assigned to the Litigation Department
Responsibilities include extensive preparation of motion
discovery requests and responses thereto, summaries of
chronologies, and the like. Attend depositions and court
notebooks, prepare exhibits for trial, draft Q & A, prepa
billable hours: 122.

OTTIS, COAN & STEWART, LLC; Greeley, Colorado
LEGAL ASSISTANT

Assist partner in preparation of real estate documents, pr
agreements, covenants, homeowner association docume
mechanic’s lien documents, demand letters for collectior
same (complaint, motions for default judgment, etc.).

LAW OFFICES OF ZILDA MCCAUSLAND & EILER
LEGAL ASSISTANT N
Legal and factual research for a family law practitioner

firm specializing in defense of personal injury litigation
McCausland’s caseload was in the representation of non
term of dependency and neglect proceedings.

nce. Demonstrated ability to
d consistently. Proficiency in
unicator. Keen organizational
| orientated.

ERIENCE
October 2005 - present

es to low-income and elderly clients in
lic benefits. Responsibilities include

ition of clients in subsidized housing,
ration of motions, memoranda or points
), summaries of depositions and medical
ons and court hearings, prepare trial and
Q & A, prepare clients for trial. Give

e, property tax relief, etc., to low-income

August 2004 - October 2005

1ent consisting of eleven full-time
Director and three attorneys.

s, memoranda or points and authorities,

depositions and medical records, case
hearings, prepare trial and oral argument

re clients for trial. Average monthly

2001 - July, 2004

imarily for subdivisions (development
nts); responsible for preparation of
n and, when necessary, pleadings for

& AICKLEN, LLC;
anta Rosa, California
McCausland) and the satellite office of a
matters. Approximately 40% of Ms.
tEnglish speaking children during the

2000 - 2001



HATHAWAY, SPEIGHT & KUNZ, LLC; Cheyenne, Wyoming

LEGAL ASSISTANT
Assisted partner whose practice comprised of serving a
transactions throughout the State of Wyoming. Directly
resolutions, trust indentures, agency agreements, and m
of bonds through public offering and private placement

BOULDER COUNTY LEGAL SERVICES; Boulder, (
PRO BONO COORDINATOR/PARALEGAL

Implemented, coordinated, recruited, and maintained th
(approximately 350 attorneys) through community outrg
and support. Responsible for interview, selection, and

(approximately 20 paralegals). Developed, updated, ang

materials for both groups and other agency programs re
BCLS program needs. Participated in agency and comn
rights and/or services by providing information that was
with appropriate materials. Worked cooperatively with {
Department of Social Services, and other agencies and g
effectively advocate for low-income populations. Demg
caseload effectively and consistently (annually: referred
and opened 25 cases personally) while supervising adm

1]

ADDITIONAL RELEVANT

CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE; Boulder, Colorado
LEGAL ASSISTANT

NATIONAL WILDLIFE FEDERATION; Washington,
LEGAL ASSISTANT

ACHIEVEMEN

TWIN PINE RANCH; Wheatland, Wyoming
FATHING RANCH, Iron Mountain, Wyoming
RANCH HAND

NOMINATED BY THE BOULDER BAR ASSOCIATI
BOULDER WOMEN’S BAR ASSOCIATION FOR TH
ASSOCIATION’S JACOB V. SCHAETZEL AWARD
to the development and delivery of legal services to the J

JOFFREY BALLET

EDUCATION

GEORGE WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY; Washington
Legal Assistant Certificate

PRATT INSTITUTE: Brooklyn, NY
Bachelor Industrial Design

D.C.

1998 - 2000

bond counsel on public financing
' responsible for the preparation of
yriad closing documents for the issuance

lolorado 1990 - 1994
e volunteer attorney program

zach, technical assistance, case follow-up

cheduling of non-attorney volunteers

] produced specific training seminars and
ated to low-income client population and

nunity meetings regarding legal issues,

clear, knowledgeable, and supported

he Boulder County Bar Association,
rganizations in developing strategies to

nstrated ability to handle high volume
approximately 600 cases to private bar

nistrative office personnel and tasks to
maintain and enhance effective operation of the program.

EXPERIENCE

1988 - 1990

1985 - 1988

TS

ON AND THE 1994

{IE COLORADO BAR

demonstrated dedication

DOOT '}

1963 - 1970

, D.C.



~ EDUCATION -

BAR ADMISSIONS

EXPERIENCE

RUTH HEINTZ

Uni?ersity of California, Boalt Hall School of Law, Be
-I.D., May 1995

Dartmouth College
B.A. cum laude with major in engineering sciences, June

State Bar of California - 1996 (inactive)

State Bar of Ohio - 1997 (inactive)

State Bar of Oregon - 1999 (submitted Form A resignati
State Bar of New Hampshire - 2004

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Littleton, New Han
Staff Attorney, starting June 2004, Managing Attorney, Seg
Represent and provide legal advice to low-income and sex
with a wide variety of legal problems: housing (evictions
Iousing); Social Security and Medicaid; family law (divo
domestic violence restraining orders); unemployment con
and other matters. Appear in state and federal courts and

Southeastern Ohio Legal Services, Portsmouth, Zanesvi
Staff Attorney, May 1996 to March 1999, April 2001 to M
Represented and provided legal advice to low-income clig
légal problems: family law (divorce, custody and visitatig
(evictions, conditions, rent escrow, land installment contrg
predatory lending and debt collection; utilities; Social Sec
public benefits; special education; wills; and other matters

“predatory lending team” to strategize and address concex]

and federal courts and at administrative hearings.

Legal Aid Services of Oregon, Pendleton, Oregon
Staff Attorney, April 1999 to April 2001.
Represented and provided legal advice primarily to memb

the Umatilla Indian Reservation in various areas of povert]

state courts and at administrative hearings.

San Francisco Neighborhood Legal Assistance Founda

Domestic Relations Unit Law Clerk, January 1994 to May]

East Bay Community Law Center, Berkeley, California
HIV Unit Intern, January 1995 to May 1995.

Legal Aid Society of Alameda County, Oakland, Califor

Law Clerk, June 1993 to June 1994.

Family Violence Law Center, Berkeley, CA
Volunteer, Spring and Sunumer 1993.

Tongass Alaska Girl Scout Couneil, Juneaun, AK
VISTA Volunteer, November 1989 to November 1990.

rkeley, CA

1988

bn in 2007)

shire

ptember 2008 to present.

rior clients living in northermn New Hamipshire
conditions, Section 8 terminations, fair

rce, custody and visitation, child support,
ipensation and other public benefits; utilities;
at administrative hearings.

lle, and Newark, Ohio

ay 2004.

mts living in rural Ohio with a wide variety of
n, child support, domestic violence); housing
icts, foreclosures); consumer law including
prity, unemployment compensation, and other
. Member of the “housing team” and

hs of low-income people. Appeared in state
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Bennett B. Mortell

EXPERIENCE:
NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, Claremont, New Hampshire

Staff Attorney August 1996 — present
Have represented low income clients in all levels of State Courts, Federal District Court-
NH and at state and federal administrative hearings. I am currently representing clients
in housing cases through our Fair Housing Project and Homeless Advocacy Project. I am
currently the managing attorney in the Claremont branch law office and director our
Benefit Project.
Paralegal, March 1980- July 1993

Represented clients at administrative hearings, did outreach at Senior Centers, and
worked with clients to testify at public hearings

VISTA VOLUNTEER
Volunteer in Service to America in Council Bluffs, Ia. from 1978-1979
Worked on two projects, one was a project housed at the lowa Department of Human
Services to find friendly volunteers for disabled| people (like a big brother program) Also
worked as a community organizer for Legal Services of lowa for my final three months
of service.

EDUCATION:

FRANKLIN PIERCE LAW CENTER, Concord, New Hampshire
Juris Doctor, May 1996

TRINITY COLLEGE, Hartford, Ct.
Bachelor of Arts, History, May 1977
BAR ADMISSION AND PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIO&S:

Admitted to New Hampshire Bar, October 1996




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE
LEGAL ADVICE & REFERRAL CENTER

OUR VISION, MISSION, AND VALUES

OUR VISION is that the low-income people of New Hampshire will have their voices heard in
the courtrooms and other legal and policy-making arenas of our state when their shelter, health

care, subsistence income, education, custody of their children, safety from abuse, or other basic
needs are at stake.

OUR MISSION is to fulfill America’s promise of equal justice by providing civil legal services
to New Hampshire’s poor, including education and empowerment, advice, representation, and
advocacy for systemic change.

OUR VALUES

e A justice system accessible to all is a core eleme¢nt of our democracy’s social contract
that binds everyone in our state together in a web of rights and responsibilities.

e If the justice system is to operate effectively and fairly, vigorous and skillful legal
advocacy should be available to those who cannot purchase it in legal disputes in which
their basic needs are at stake.

e The legal aid network, the private bar, and the judiciary have a particular obligation to
promote these ideals and to lead efforts to persuade our political institutions to provide
the necessary resources to put these principles into practice.

e Legal advocacy to assist individuals with day-tg-day legal issues and systemic advocacy
to address the underlying causes of poverty are complementary strategies in a
comprehensive and effective legal aid system.

e Client needs should drive the New Hampshire l¢gal aid system and legal services should
be provided in a manner that respects the dignity and value of low-income people.

OUR OPERATING PRINCIPLES

o Statewide Accessibility and Responsiveness to Community [.egal Needs. The legal aid
system should be easy to access and available statewide, and it should have the capacity
to respond rapidly to changing client needs. Low-income people should be involved in
helping legal service providers identify the highest priority legal needs to be addressed by
our programs.

e (Collaboration. The legal aid system in New Hampshire is a partnership whose successful
functioning requires maximum collaboration among legal services programs, the private
bar, the judiciary and other entities within the broader legal community.




Stewardship. The legal aid system is continuously accountable to our clients, funders,
and partners. We have a duty of stewardship to preserve and enhance our programs and
services over the long-term for the benefit of future clients.

Organizational Excellence. The legal aid programs in New Hampshire are committed to
achieving excellence both in the quality of our gervice to clients and in the efficient use of
the resources available to us. We will take advantage of economies of scale whenever
possible and promote effective use of existing and emerging technologies by developing

necessary and appropriate organizational structyres.

Professional Excellence. To assure that NHLA|and LARC provide low-income people
with high-quality legal services, our legal aid pfograms should recruit and retain staff of
the highest quality by offering competitive compensation and providing the training,
supervision, and technological support needed tp assure the highest level of staff

performance for our clients.

Excerpted from Strategic Plan

Approved on November 14, 2012



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE Board of Directors 2012 (revised 2-7-2013)

BRIDGET ANDERSON
KEN BARTHOLOMEW, Esq. Rath, Young &
Pignatelli, PC
PETER BEESON, Esq. Devine Millimet &
Secretary) Branch

PETER W. BROWN, Esq.

Preti, Flaherty, Beliveau
and Pachios

WILLIAM L. CHAPMAN Orr & Reno PA
CLAUDIA C. DAMON, Esq. -
LARRY EDELMAN Pierce Atwood LLP

SAMANTHA ELLIOTT, Esq. Gallagher, Callahan &
Gartrell, P.C. - e e e
JAMES FITTS, CFP Harvest Capital
DOUGLAS P. HILL, Esq. Nungesser & Hill e e
JAMES D. KEROUAC, Esq. Nixon, Peabody LLP m
(President) i m
ELIZABETH M. LEONARD, Esq. | McDowell & Osbum PA | m
TARA MARVEL .
ROBERT E. MURPHY, JR., Esq. | Wadleigh, Starr &
Peters, PLLC | !
KIM NORWOOD , .
JOHN J. PELLETIER, SR. b
JOHN T. PENDLETON, Esq. Dwyer, Donovan & “
Pendleton, P.A. m _
ANNE PHILLIPS NH Charitable |
(Treasurer) Foundation i m
DEBORAH KANE REIN Rein Mediation - w,
MARK C. ROUVALIS, Esq. McLane, Graf,
(Chair) : Raulerson & Middleton ;
DARLENE SCHMIDT-BRANDT | Centrix Bank , ; |
: ! i
w i
PATRICK SHEEHAN Sulloway & Hollis Loon
PLLC S
DENISE WEBB | | P




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

State Grant-In-Aid Funds Program
State FY 2014 and 2015

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid
(Annual) this Contract | from this Contract

Elliott Berry Managing Attorney $93,425 17.8% $16,672/year

Candace Gebhart Staff Paralegal $62,849 15.9% $10,000/year

Ruth Heintz Managing Attorney $91,767 7.6% $7,000/year

Ben Mortell Managing Attorney $96,291 3.1% $3,000/year




